LENDINGKAZ T

Ref: LFL/Stock Exchange/2021-22/25
September 22, 2021

To

BSE Limited

Department of Corporate Services
P.J Towers, 25t Floor,

Dalal Street, Mumbai-400001

Dear Sir/Madam,
Sub: Notice of Annual General Meeting of Lendingkart Finance Limited.

In terms of regulation 50(2) & 53(2) of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing
Obligations and disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“Listing Regulations”), please
find attached herewith Notice of 24% Annual General Meeting of the members of
Lendingkart Finance Limited (the “Company”) scheduled to be held on Thursday,
September 30, 2021 at 11:00 a.m. through two way video conferencing, to, inter alia, consider
and adopt the audited Financial Statement of the Company for the financial year ended 31 March,
2021 together with Report of the Auditors and the Board of Directors thereon.

A copy of the Notice along with the Annual Report of the Company is enclosed herewith.
Furthermore, please note that in terms of regulation 54(2) of the listing regulations, the extent and
nature of security created and maintained with respect to secured listed non-convertible debt

securities of the Company is provided under Note No. 14 of the accompanying financial statements
of the Company, which forms part of the Annual Report.

You are kindly requested to take this letter on record.
Thanking you

For Lendingkart Finance Limited

Umesh Navani

Company Secretary & Compliance Officer
ICSI Membership No: A40899

LENDINGKART FINANCE LIMITED

CIN: U65910MH1996PLC258722

Registered Office: A-303/304, Citi Point, Andheri-Kurla Road, Andheri East, Mumbai, Maharashtra, 400 059, India.

Corporate Office: B Block, 6™ Floor, The First, The First Avenue Road, Behind Keshavbaug Party Plot, Vastrapur, Ahmedabad, 380 015, Gujarat, India.
Phone: +91-79-678144500 email: lendingkartfinance@lendingkart.com website: www.lendingkartfinance.com
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LENDINGKAST

& Lendingkart G

NOTICE

Notice is hereby given that the 24™ Annual General Meeting of the members of Lendingkart Finance
Limited (the “Company”) will be held on Thursday, September 30, 2021 at 11:00 a.m. through two
way video conferencing, to consider and transact the following businesses:

Ordinary Business:

1. To receive, consider and adopt the audited Financial Statement of the Company for the
financial year ended 31% March, 2021 together with Report of the Auditors and the Board of
Directors thereon.

2. To appoint Mr. Anand Pande, Director (DIN: 08233960), who retires by rotation and being
eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.

3. To appoint Mr. Raichand Sardarmal Lunia, Director (DIN: 01188845), who retires by rotation
and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.

Special Business:

4. To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following
resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to provisions of Section(s) 149, 150, 152, 160, 161 read with
Schedule IV and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) read with
Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory
modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force), and the Articles of Association
of the Company Ms. Uma Subramaniam (DIN: 07434953), who was appointed as an additional non-
executive independent director of the Company with effect from 27" March, 2021 by the Board of
Directors (“Board”), and who pursuant to the provisions of Section 161 of the Companies Act, 2013
and Article 73 of the Articles of Association of the Company holds office up to the date of this annual
general meeting, in respect of whom the Company has received a notice in writing under Section
160(1) of the Act from a member proposing her candidature for the office of Director and who has
submitted a declaration that she meets the criteria of Independence as provided in the Act, and rules
made thereunder, be and is hereby appointed as a Non-executive Independent Director of the
Company to hold office for a term of 3 (three) years with effect from 27" March, 2021, whose office
shall not be liable to determination by retirement by rotation.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and are hereby
authorized to do all acts and deeds and things as may be necessary to give effect to the aforesaid
resolution.”

By order of the Board of Directors
Lendingkart Finance Limited

Sd/-
Date: September 22, 2021 Umesh Navani
Place: Ahmedabad Company Secretary & Compliance Officer

LENDINGKART FINANCE LIMITED

CIN: U65910MH1996PLC258722

Registered Office: A-303/304, Citi Point, Andheri-Kurla Road, Andheri East, Mumbai, Maharashtra, 400 059, India.

Corporate Office: B Block, 6™ Floor, The First, The First Avenue Road, Behind Keshavbaug Party Plot, Vastrapur, Ahmedabad, 380 015, Gujarat, India.
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NOTES:

1.

10.

11.

Considering the present Covid-19 pandemic and in view of the continuing restrictions on the
movement of persons at several places in the country, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs
(“MCA”) has vide its circular dated 5" May, 2020 read together with circulars dated 8" April,
2020, 13™ April, 2020, 28" September, 2020, 31% December, 2020 and 13" January 2021
(collectively referred to as “MCA Circulars”) permitted convening the Annual General
Meeting (“AGM” / “Meeting”) through Video Conferencing (“VC”) , without the physical
presence of the members at a common venue. In accordance with the MCA Circulars,
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’), the AGM of the Company is being held
through VC / OAVM. The deemed venue for the AGM shall be the Registered Office of the
Company.

Members attending the AGM through VC/OAVM shall be counted for the purpose of
reckoning the quorum under Section 103 of the Companies Act, 2013.

Generally, a member entitled to attend and vote at the meeting is entitled to appoint a proxy to
attend and vote on a poll instead of himself and the proxy need not be a member of the
Company. Since, this AGM is being held through VC / OAVM pursuant to the MCA Circulars,
physical attendance of members has been dispensed with. Accordingly, the facility for
appointment of proxies by the members will not be available for the AGM and hence, the Proxy
Form and Attendance Slip are not annexed hereto.

Pursuant to the Secretarial Standard-2 issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India,
the details/information pertaining to the Directors proposed to be re-appointed at Item
Nos. 2 and 3 of Ordinary Business, is annexed hereto as Annexure - 1.

A statement pursuant to Section 102(1) of the Act, relating to the Special Business at Item
No. 4 to be transacted at the AGM is annexed hereto as Annexure - 2.

The resolutions in the meeting will be passed by show of hands, unless a poll is validly
demanded either before the meeting or during the meeting. The voting, in case of a poll, shall
be done by sending an email to umesh.navani@lendingkart.com (“Designated E-mail
Address”) in the format annexed hereto as Annexure - 3 and forming part of this Notice.
The AGM is being held at shorter notice. A draft letter for obtaining consent of the Members
to hold the AGM on shorter notice is attached hereto as Annexure-4. Members are requested
to share the copy of signed consent letter before the meeting.

Since, the AGM will be held through VC/ OAVM, the route map of the venue of the Meeting
is not annexed hereto.

Queries, if any, on the Annual Report and operations of the Company, may please be sent at
the Designated E-mail Address at least seven days prior to the date of the AGM, so that relevant
query may be replied by the company suitably at the meeting.

The Register of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel and their shareholding maintained
under Section 170 of the Act, the Register of Contracts or Arrangements in which the directors
are interested, maintained under Section 189 of the Act, and the relevant documents referred
to in the Notice will be available in electronic form for inspection by the Members during the
AGM. All documents referred to in the Notice will also be available in electronic form for
inspection without any fee by the Members from the date of circulation of this Notice up to
the date of AGM. Members seeking to inspect such documents can send an email to the
Designated E-mail Address.

Corporate members are also required to send legible scanned certified true copy (in PDF
Format) of the Board Resolution authorizing their representative to attend and vote at the
annual general meeting to the Designated E-mail Address.
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12.

Instruction to access and participate in the meeting:

i

11

iv

The Members may attend the meeting from their mobile phone / desktop / tablet /
laptop supporting high speed internet, video camera, speaker and microphone facilities.

The Members may download Microsoft Teams Video Conferencing App from the
Google Play Store (in case of android phone) and Apple App Store (in case of iphone).
Alternatively, the Members may login directly through the browser, by clicking on the
following link.

Meeting URL (Press Ctrl + Link)
Lendingkart Finance Meeting Joining Link

Notice of this AGM will also be available on the website of the Company viz.
lendingkartfinance.com.

The facility for joining the meeting will open atleast 15 minutes before the time scheduled
for the meeting and shall remain open till the expiry of 15 minutes after such scheduled
tume.

The Members may contact the following designated official in case of any query/technical
problem:

Mr. Umesh Navani

Company Secretary & Compliance Officer

Email: umesh.navani@]lendingkart.com
Phone: +91 8347112207
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Item 2 & 3:

Annexure -1

Details of Directors seeking appointment/ re-appointment at the Annual General Meeting
[Pursuant to Secretarial Standard-2 issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of Indial.

Name of the Director

Mr. Anand Pande

Mtr. Raichand Sardarmal

Lunia
Director Identification Number 08233960 01188845
Date of first appointment on the 03/10/2018 13/05/2015
Board
Age (in years) 56 74
Qualification MBA  graduate from Faculty of | Chartered Accountant (The
Management Studies and B.Tech | Institute of Chartered
(Electrical Engineering) from IIT- | Accountants of India)
BHU, Varanasi.
Alumni of Columbia Business School. | Company Secretary (The
Institute of Company Secretaries
of India)
Master of Commerce
Experience Mr. Anand Pande has nearly 30 years of | Mr. Raichand Lunia has above 30

industry experience in corporate
banking and global transaction banking
as well as a Group CEO of private
equity investee companies.

He is the Founder of the independent
Singapore based advisory firm ‘The
Growth ~ Paradigm  Partnership’
(“GPP”). GPP Partners assist its
clients in growing, running and future
proofing their businesses.

years of experience in company
audit, bank and NBFC audits,
taxation, working with financial
institutions, project finance &
SME fund arrangement. In the
past, he has served as GM & VP
in large textile units of Gujarat.

Terms and conditions of
re-appointment

Re-appointment as a non-executive
director  (nominee of  Fullerton
Financial Private Limited)

Re-appointment as a
executive director

non-

Remuneration details

Not applicable

Not applicable

Chairmanships/Ditrectorships ~ of

other companies

Directorship in other companies:

1. Lendingkart Technologies Private

Directorship in other companies:

1. Lendingkart Technologies

Limited Private Limited
2. Lendingkart Account
Aggregator Private Limited
Chairmanships/Memberships  of | None None
Committees of other companies
Remuneration last drawn in the | Not applicable Not applicable
Company
Shareholding in the company Nil Nil
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Name of the Director

Mr. Anand Pande

Mtr. Raichand Sardarmal
Lunia

Relationship with other Directors, | None Mr. Raichand Lunia is father of

Manager and other Key Managerial Mr.  Harshvardhan  Lunia,

Personnel of the company Chairman and Managing
Director of the Company

Number of meetings of the Board | 5 3

attended during the year ended 31*

March, 2021

Number of meetings of the Board | 2 2

attended during the period from 01*
April, 2021 il date
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Annexure — 2

EXPLANATORY STATEMENT UNDER SECTION 102 OF THE COMPANIES ACT,
2013

Item No. 4:

The Board of Directors (“Board”) of the Company on 27" March, 2021 appointed Ms. Uma
Subramaniam (DIN: 07434953), in the capacity of additional non-executive independent director to
the Board of the Company, not liable to retire by rotation, for a term of 3 (three) years in accordance
with the provisions of Section 149, 152, 161 and Schedule IV of the Companies Act, 2013 read with
Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 and Article 73 of the Articles
of Association of the Company. Ms. Uma Subramaniam holds office up to the date of this annual
general meeting of the Company, unless appointed as a Non-executive Independent Director at the
annual general meeting.

The Company has received a notice in writing under Section 160 of the Act from a member proposing
candidature of Ms. Uma Subramaniam for the office of the Independent Director. Ms. Uma
Subramaniam is not disqualified from being appointed as a non-executive independent director of the
Company and fulfils the conditions specified under Sections 164 and 149(6) of the Companies Act,
2013 for such appointment and has consented to act as a Director of the Company.

Save and except Ms. Uma Subramaniam, none of the other directors, key managerial personnel or
their relatives are concerned or interested in the said Resolution.

The details/information pursuant to Secretarial Standard-2 with respect to appointment of director is
detailed below.

Name of the Director Ms. Uma Subramaniam
Director Identification Number 07434953
Date of birth 18" November, 1955
Date of joining the Board 27" March, 2021
Profile of director (to include age and | Ms. Uma Subramaniam, aged 65 years, holds
qualification of the director) following qualifications:
Qualification:
e MA
e CFA
e CAIIB (Certified Associate of Indian Institute
of Bankers)
Experience Ms. Uma Subramaniam has over 20 years’

experience in Department of Financial Supervision,
RBI with a fair knowledge of finance, risk
management, accounting.

She had been a Member secretary to the Working
Group on NBFCs Issues and concerns and had also
been a Member of subgroup on accounting
standards implementation along with a Member of
Steering Group on Resolution of Financial
Institutions, FSB, Basel.
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Terms and conditions of appointment

Appointed as a non-executive independent director
of a Company for a period of 3 (three) years with
effect from 27" March, 2021.

Remuneration details

Apart from the sitting fees for attending the
meeting of the Board of Directors and Committees
of the Board, no other remuneration is being paid
to Ms. Uma Subramaniam.

Justification for choosing the appointee for
appointment as Independent Director

The Board based on the experience and expertise
of Ms. Uma Subramaniam is of the opinion that
Ms. Subramaniam has the requisite qualification to
continue to act as the Director.

Chairmanships/Directorships of other
companies (excluding Foreign Companies

Ms. Uma Subramaniam holds directorship in
following companies:

and Section 8 Companies) - STCI Finance Limited

Chairmanships/Memberships of | | STCI Finance | - Risk Management

Committees of other companies Limited Committee — Member
- IT Strategy

Committee — Member
- Credit & Investment
Committee — Member
- CSR Committee -
Member

Remuneration last drawn in the Company

Apart from sitting fees, Ms. Uma Subramaniam was
not paid any remuneration.

Shareholding in the company

Nil

Relationship with other Directors,
Manager and other Key Managerial
Personnel of the company

None.

Number of meetings of the Board
attended during the year ended 31%
March, 2021

0 (Appointed with effect from 27" March, 2021)

Number of meetings of the Board
attended during the period from 01* April,
2021 till date

In view of the above, the Board recommends the passing of the resolutions set out at Item No. 4 as

an Ordinary Resolution

Date: September 22, 2021
Place: Ahmedabad

By order of the Board of Directors
Lendingkart Finance Limited

Sd/-
Umesh Navani
Company Secretary & Compliance Officer
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Annexure — 3
Subject: Voting by Poll at the 24™ Annual General Meeting of Lendingkart Finance Limited.

Item no. 1

1/We, <<Name of the Member>> being the Member of Lendingkart Finance Limited (“Company”),
hereby give my/our [assent/ dissent]' on the Resolution concerning the adoption of the audited
Financial Statement of the Company for the financial year ended 31% March, 2021 together with
Report of the Auditors and the Board of Directors thereon.

Item no. 2

1/We, <<Name of the Member>> being the Member of Lendingkart Finance Limited (“Company”),
hereby give my/our [assent/ dissent]' on the Resolution concerning the appointment of Mr. Anand
Pande, Director (DIN: 08233960), who retires by rotation and being eligible, offers himself for re-

appointment.

Item no. 3

1/We, <<Name of the Member>> being the Member of Lendingkart Finance Limited (“Company”),
hereby give my/our [assent/ dissent]' on the Resolution concerning the appointment of Mr.
Raichand Sardarmal Lunia, Director (DIN: 01188845), who retires by rotation and being eligible,
offers himself for re-appointment.

Item no. 4

1/We, <<Name of the Member>> being the Member of Lendingkart Finance Limited (“Company”),
hereby give my/our [assent/ dissent]' on the Resolution concerning the appointment of Ms. Uma
Subramaniam (DIN: 07434953) as a Non-executive Independent Director of the Company to hold
office for a term of 3 (three) years with effect from 27" March, 2021.

Note:
! Please strikethrough the option wherever requited and e-mail your poll at the
umesh.navani@lendingkart.com .
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Annexure — 4

The Companies Act, 2013
Consent by shareholders for shorter notice
[Pursuant to section 101(1) of the Companies Act, 2013]

Date: <<>>

The Company Secretary

Lendingkart Finance Limited (“Company”),

A-303/304, Citi Point, Andheri-Kurla Road,

Andheri (East), Mumbai - 400 059.

Dear Sir,

I, <<Name>> holding <<>> equity shate of INR. 10/- each in the Company, hereby give
consent, pursuant to section 101(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, to hold 24™ Annual General
Meeting of the Company on September 30, 2021, at shorter notice.

Thank you

Yours sincerely,

<<Name>>
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CHAIRMAN’S LETTER

Dear Shareholders, Investors & Colleagues,

The last financial year has been one of a kind, where countries across the world have been hit
hard physically, mentally, socially, financially and emotionally with an unexpected outbreak of
COVID-19 virus. The originally projected growth in the economy took a major setback due to
complete focus on saving lives amidst a once-in-a-century crisis. India’s GDP contracted by
7.3 percent to Rs 135.13 trillion in financial year 2020-21 from Rs 145.7 trillion in previous
year. The pandemic impacted both supply and demand in the economy with the policy dilemma
of “lives versus livelihoods”. The reforms, initiatives and measures taken at all levels, were
unprecedented amidst all major economies and were implemented to provide maximum
cushion to absorb the pandemic shock.

India’s proactive response to the unprecedented pandemic crisis:

One of the severely impacted segments was the Micro, Small & Medium enterprises due to
rippling effect of pandemic waves since day zero resulting from nationwide lockdown, market
demand reduced across many industries, already capital starved situation in their entire supply
chain. The respectable Prime Minister’s Office through various ministries and Reserve Bank
took commendable steps, including:

e Prime Minister’s Employment Generation Programme (PMEGP)

e Credit Linked Capital Subsidy for Technology Upgradation (CLCSS)

e Credit Guarantee Fund Trust for Micro and Small Enterprises (CGTMSE)
e Rs 20,000 crore Subordinate debt for stressed MSMEs

e Udyam Registration

e Rs 50,000 cr. Equity infusion for MSMEs through Fund of Funds

While both governance and Reserve Bank took a series of measures to minimize the hard-
hitting impact on industries, still this segment have undergone a deep crisis and required
continued support from entire ecosystem to stand on their feet again. These credit reliefs and
credit guarantee schemes aimed to push more liquidity towards MSMEs, there was a wide
opportunity segment foreseen for MSMEs due to the disruption in global demand & supply,
and supply chain as well, leading to an enforced rigor on making Bharat Atmanirbhar.

Lendingkart builds resilience during pandemic induced shutdown:

At the start of the lockdown period, Lendingkart simulated various scenarios based on industry,
geographical areas, businesses segment and their impacts for planning the business for the
coming year with its vision to support this heavily impacted MSME segment. The fundamental
idea was to support both existing and new MSME borrowers, while remaining empathetic
towards their needs and business requirements since most of them were going through an
extremely difficult period.




Lendingkart launched relief packages for customers and risk mitigation strategies:

The company built carefully thought through strategies to roll out several Covid relief programs
for its customer segment and took various measures to spread awareness. Lendingkart
leveraged its digital reach to launch programs and ensuring communication to its customers
about the relief measures.

e These benefits included Moratorium period from March,’20 to August,’20, one-time
restructuring offered to eligible customers that were impacted due to Covid related stress
after the mortarium and post lockdown period.

e The Company representatives remained continuously connected with all its customers
throughout the year to understand their business situation and support required from
the company. This continued digital connect and customer-centric approach has gone a
long way in managing two-way communication for company to disburse new business
loans to credit worthy customers while keeping collections efficiencies and overall
portfolio quality under check.

e In addition, the company launched new product offerings and flexible repayment
options for its customers to support their working capital requirements.
e The Company also offered top up credit to several customers based on their credit

history and loan performance in order to equip them to cater to the projected demand
spike in the post lockdown period.

Lendingkart continuing to pave the ‘digital’ way forward by being the enabler for a
comprehensive Financial Ecosystem collaboration:

The financial institutions have been competing in terms of products, delivery methods,
technological features etc which was not serving the objective in the long term. The ecosystem
has moved from competing with each other on various fronts like product, service etc, to a
collaborative approach for jointly addressing the challenges and resolving the issues. Having
built one of the largest MSME databases in the country with 3.5 billion data points for 500k
MSME:s by evaluating 1 million+ MSME applications, Lendingkart has taken the next step of
collaboration across the financial services ecosystem which is a digital framework that integrates
all the stakeholders via a common platform.

“Uendingkart has invested in technological advancements to enable E2E digital experience in MSME lending
by productizing all aspects of lending — origination, evaluation, onboarding and collections”




Zero Touch Collec10

Lendingkart ‘2gtht’ platform is going to power entire ecosystem through its E2E capabilities
of:
o 2gthr - provides end-to-end asset servicing journeys for financial institutions, ensuring
a seamless and friction free onboarding capabilities for Banks and NBFCs to scale their
lending operations to MSMEs across the country and leveraged Lendingkart enhanced
loan management capabilities with following platforms
e ‘x/r8 - Origination engine enabling real time sourcing, approval and instant payouts,
providing single window access to monitor service status
o ‘Creds - Credit Intelligence platform providing MSME credit score based on LK
proprietary underwriting model for a collaborative digital ecosystem to extend financing
across industries and geographies and customer segments
o ‘Atom’/ Zero Touch: Entire customer journey modulatized via micro-processes for
providing a seamless customer experience and reducing the turnaround time and
increasing the coverage of MSMEs being serviced

LK is well placed to act as the “perfect bridge” between the internet companies having scores
of B2B MSME customers and lenders with large balance sheet looking to penetrate this
segment and is is among the very few FinTech’s globally to provide E2E capabilities from
customer acquisition to collections via its digital platform products.

Customer Experience:

As of Mar 2021, Lendingkart has evaluated more than 8 lakh loan applications across 2,000+
locations pan India. The customer can conveniently reach Lendingkart either through mobile
or internet 24x7, delivering seamless customer experience. LLendingkart has have brought credit
access to more than 1.3 lakh customers across the country, making LLendingkart a Fintech with
largest geographical digital footprint. Current credit model has the ability to risk classify an
application into 5 risk categories and objectively determine amount eligibility based on risk
profile. Better prediction of amount eligibility has resulted in disbursal allocation to good
customers over time. ~40% customers are going through “Zero Touch” process with 75%
TAT reduction; various developments in place to increase coverage and reduce TAT to 24 days
for E2E disbursement. Account aggregator ecosystem will further fast track LK’s mission to
score each and every MSME in the country through cash-flow / alternate data models.
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Business Performance:
In context of business growth, the Company maintained its performance with following key
highlights:

17,000+ new business loans booked during the year amounting to Rs ~1100 Crores
Assets under management (AUM) Rs 2,465 Crores, well diversified portfolio

Company clocked ~Rs 500 Cr as revenue in FY21, withstanding the pandemic impacts
owing to strong portfolio and high performing metrics

Secured an upgrade in Credit rating to A-/ Stable Outlook from Infomerics credit rating
agency during peak pandemic situation

Entire eligible portfolio covered under Credit Guarantee Scheme (CGTSME) of Central
government, providing 75 % cover on the defaulting loans

Maintained 3x provision buffers over and above regulatory minimum to ensure clean
quality loan portfolio

Nationwide collections presence with more than 550 collection agents and 51 collection
agencies with all Lendingkart agents having access to mobile applications with live
tracking feature. 1 collection agent for every 100 loans which is best in the industry
Demonstrated ability to raise debt capital, raised ~5K crore from more than 80 pedigree
counterparties

Well diversified Board including directors with decades of experience in Risk, Credit,
Technology, Treasury and Regulatory. Ex-CGM In-charge of NBFC department ~36
years RBI experience as Independent Director

Largest Co-lending platform in last 18 months with successful onboarding of 7 large
banks/ NBFCs and several more in the pipeline with large, sanctioned credit lines of
more than 1500 Crores.
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With the strong focus on strengthening the platform offerings, Lendingkart is poised to go
above and beyond to achieve its objective of closing the credit gap for MSMEs in the true
sense- acting as a bridge between all associated stakeholders. This is especially borne out by the
name of the platform 2gthr — which imbibes collaboration at its very core. This is possible by
digitization, minimizing the manual interventions and providing value added information to all
in the least possible amount of time and effort. Lendingkart has been the pioneer to create a
co-lending financing digital journey for this segment enabling them to get credit at the lowest
possible interest rates. The combination of all three well-tuned platforms is a force to reckon
which is enabling Lendingkart to be the market leader and lender of choice for our customers.
I would like to thank shareholders, fellow Lendingkart-ians, our partners and lenders and all
other stakeholders for their support, belief and commitment to us during the difficult last year.
Hope to continue to build Lendingkart to be a company we are all proud of.

Wishing all of you a safe year ahead.
Sd/-

Harshvardhan Lunia
Chairman & Managing Director
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

To the Members,
Lendingkart Finance Limited.

The Directors are pleased to present their 24t Report along with the financial results of
the Company for the financial year ended 315t March, 2021.

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

(Amount - X in Lakh)

Particulars 31st March, 2021 31st March, 2020 1

Total income 49,045.10 46,430.28
Less: Expenditure 28,460.78 30,287.77
Less: Impairment of financial instruments

Additional covid provisions 6,783.58 1,441.44

Other provision 10,984.94 10,506.79
Profit/ (Loss) before Tax (Pre covid) 9,599.38 5,635.72
Profit/ (Loss) before Tax (Post covid) 2,815.80 4.194.28
Tax 2 983.86 1,225.19
Net Profit/ (Loss) after Tax 1,831.94 2,969.09

Notes:
I previous yeat’s figures have been regrouped based on the current year’s classification.

2 Net of deferred tax.

PERFORMANCE OVERVIEW

During the period under review, the Company had disbursed loans amounting to
% 1,09,841.50 Lakh. Gross Income increased by 5.63% from X 46,430.28 Lakh in
FY 2019-20 to X 49,045.10 Lakh in FY 2020-21.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

A detailed review of the operations, financial performance, risk management, outlook,
among others, is provided in the ‘Management Discussion and Analysis’ enclosed as
Annexure-A to this Report.

CHANGE IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS

During the year under review, there has been no change in the nature of business of the
Company.
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MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS

There have been no material changes and commitments affecting the financial position
of the Company which have occurred between the end of the financial year of the
Company and the date of the Report.

SHARE CAPITAL

The Company is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Lendingkart Technologies Private Limited
(“Holding Company”). The Company does not have any subsidiary, joint venture, or
associate company.

As on 31st March, 2021, the paid-up equity share capital of the Company stood at
% 44,18,79,310 (Rupees forty four crore eighteen lakh seventy nine thousand three
hundred and ten) consisting of 4,41,87,931 (four core forty one lakh eighty seven
thousand nine hundred and thirty one) equity shares of X 10 (Rupees ten) each.

CAPITAL ADEQUACY

As on 31st March, 2021, the overall capital adequacy stood at 38.74%, which is way higher
than the RBI’s requirement of 15% reflecting its confidence in investing and growing the
business. Similarly, the Tier 1 Capital is comfortable at 34.42%, compared to the
requirement of 10% as laid by RBI.

CREDIT RATINGS

The overall long term rating of the Company by Infomerics, ICRA, India Ratings and
CRISIL is IVR A- (Outlook: Stable), ICRA BBB+ (Outlook: Stable), India Ratings BBB+
(Outlook: Positive) and CRISIL BBB+ (Outlook: Stable). The short-term rating of the
Company by Infomerics, ICRA Limited and India Ratings is A2. Furthermore, the
Company has obtained rating in respect of line of credit/bank lines, outstanding
secutitisation/ assignment transactions, Non-Convertible Debentures and Commercial
Paper. The ratings obtained for the said transactions are provided hereunder:

Year ended March 31, 2021
Instrument | Rating Rating Current ratine assioned Valid
Date Agency o g g upto
13-Jun- | Infomerics | IVR A-/Stable/IVR A2+(Short 09-Jun-
Line of 20 ratings Term rating) 21
+ — -
Credit/ 30-Jul-20 | ICRA HQRA]BBB (Stable)/ [ICRAJA2 29-Jul
Bank lines assigned 21
31-Aug- [ICRA]BBB+ (Stable)/ [ICRA]JA2 30-Aug-
ICRA )
20 assigned 21
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13-Jun- | Infomerics 12-Jun-
20 | ratings IVR A-/Stable 21
3 l‘é%ug‘ ICRA [ICRA|BBB+(Stable) 30‘;}“%‘
30-Jul-20 | ICRA CRA]BBB+(Stabl 29Jul-
Non- _J ul- [I ] ( a C) 21
Convertible India
Debentures/ 02-Mar- Ratings and | IND PP-MLD BBB+emt/Positive 01-Mar-
21 22
CP Research
India IND PP-MLD
29_2806p_ Ratings and | BBB+emr/Positive, IND A2 28—2816p )
Research (Commercial Paper)
23-Nov- | CRISIL 22-Nov-
20 I'TD CRISIL PP-MLD BBB+r 1

Note: Ratings are valid up to Maturity subject to the annual surveillance

KEY AWARDS AND RECOGNITIONS

Lendingkart Group have been awarded with the following recognitions and awards:
‘Innovation and Emerging Technologies’ by Business Leader of the Year

(BLOY) & Mr. Harshvardhan Lunia, Managing Director was awarded the ‘Fintech
Personality of the Year’; and

‘Best Fintech Business Lender’ by IFTA 2020.

DIVIDEND

The Directors have not recommended any dividend for the FY 2020-21.

RESERVES

During the year under review, the Company has earned a total comprehensive income of
% 1,879.99 Lakh. Accordingly, the Company has transferred X 376.00 Lakh to the statutory
Reserve Fund in terms of Section 45-1C of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

DEBT POSITION

During the year under review, X 40,750 Lakh had been raised through issuance of non-
convertible secured debentures on a private placement basis; out of which the non-
convertible secured debentures amounting to X 23,000 Lakh are Listed on the Wholesale
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Debt Market segment of BSE Limited and the non-convertible secured debentures
amounting to X 17,750 Lakh are unlisted.

As on 31st March, 2021, the total borrowings stood at I 1,63,172.33 Lakh; bank
borrowings stood at X 48,865.25 Lakh; borrowings from financial institutions and others
stood at X 406,756.49 Lakh; and non-convertible debentures were at X 67,550.59 Lakh.

DETAILS OF DEBENTURE TRUSTEES

The details of the entities which acted as the debenture trustees for the debenture holders
of the Company during the year are provided herewith:

Str. No. | Trustee Contact details
1. Catalyst Trusteeship | Address: Windsor, 6t Floor, Office
Limited No - 604, C.S.T. Road, Kalina,

Santacruz (East), Mumbai — 400 098
Phone No.: +91 22 4922 0555

Fax No.: +91 22 4922 0505

Email: dt. mumbai@ctltrustee.com
Website: www.catalysttrustee.com

2. Milestone Trusteeship | Address: CoWorksWortli, PS56, 3t Floor,
Services Private Limited | Birla Centurion, Pandurang Budhkar Marg,
Worli, Mumbai — 400030.

Phone: 020 — 62886119

Fax: 020 — 67167077
Email:investorgrievances@milestonetrustee.in,
compliance@milestonetrustee.in

Website: www.milestonetrustee.in

3. IDBI Trusteeship | Address: Asian Building, Ground Floor, 17,
Services Private Limited | R. Kamani Marg, Ballard Estate, Fort,
Mumbai — 400001.

Phone: 022-40807000

Fax: 022 — 66311776

Email: itsl@idbitrustee.com

Website: www. idbitrustee.com

PUBLIC DEPOSITS

The Company being a registered ‘non-deposit taking NBFC” under the regulations of RBI
had not accepted any public deposits during the year under review.
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ANNUAL RETURN

A copy of the annual return as provided under section 92(3) of the Act, in the prescribed
form, which will be filed with the Registrar of Companies, Mumbai, shall be uploaded on
Company’s website https://www.lendingkartfinance.com once the same is finalized.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES, OR INVESTMENTS

As the Company is registered as a non-banking financial company with Reserve Bank of
India, the provisions of Section 186, except sub-section (1) of the Companies Act, 2013
are not applicable to the Company.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND BOARD COMMITTEES

Meetings of the Board of Directors
During the period under review, the Board of Directors met five (5) times.

Constitution of the Board Committees

1. Audit Committee

Mr. Gaurav Mittal - Chairman*®
Mr. Thallapaka Venkateswara Rao - Member
Mr. Anindo Mukherjee - Member

* Mr. Ganrav Mittal ceased to be the Chairman of the Commuttee w.e.f. 27" June, 2021.

II. Nomination and Remuneration Committee

Mzr. Hong Ping Yeo - Chairman
Ms. Pankaj Makkar - Member
Mzt. Gaurav Mittal - Member*
Mzr. Thallapaka Venkateswara Rao - Member

* Mr. Gauray Mittal ceased to be the Member of the Committee w.e.f. 27" June, 2021.

The Company has laid guidelines approved by the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee (NRC) for Fit and Proper Criteria for appointment of Directors in accordance
with the guidelines issued by the Reserve Bank of India.

The Nomination & Remuneration Policy as approved by the Board on recommendation
of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee is available on website of the Company

www.lendingkartfinance.com. The Policy, inter alia, provides for:

- Guiding principles for remuneration and other terms of employment
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- Criteria for determining qualifications and positive attributes of a director, key
managerial personnel, and senior management personnel.

- Compensation structure; and

- Performance evaluation process

III. Risk Oversight Committee

Mr. Anindo Mukherjee Chairman
Mt. Anand Pande Member (appointed on 20 Augnst, 2020)
Mtr. Harshvardhan Lunia Member

- Mr. Kiranbir Nag ceased to be the Member of the Committee w.e.f. 6" July, 2020.

IV. IT Strategy Committee

Mzr. Gaurav Mittal Chairman*

Mr. Anand Pande Member

Mr. Harshvardhan Lunia Member (appointed on 20 August, 2020)

Mzr. Giridhar Yasa Permanent Invitee (appointed on 10" November, 2020)

- Mr. Kiranbir Nag ceased to be the Member of the Committee w.e.f. 6* July, 2020.
* Mr. Gauray Mittal ceased to be the Chairman of the Commuttee w.e.f. 27% June, 2021.

V. Corporate Social Responsibility Committee

Mr. Gaurav Mittal Chairman*
Mr. Harshvardhan Lunia Member
Mr. Anand Pande Member

*Mr. Ganrav Mittal ceased to be the Chairman of the Commuttee w.e.f. 27" June, 2021.

The Company’s Corporate Social Responsibility Policy (“CSR Policy”) is available on
website of the Company www.lendingkartfinance.com. The CSR Policy gives an overview
of the projects or programs that could be undertaken by the Company from time to time.

The CSR Policy, inter alia, covers the following:
- CSR Vision

- CSR Objectives

- Focus Areas

- Scope of the Policy

- Responsibility of the CSR Committee

- Governance Structure

- CSR budget and expenditure

- CSR implementation process

- CSR activities through external specialized agencies
- Monitoring & reporting
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The Annual Report on CSR activities as per Rule 8 of the Companies (Corporate Social
Responsibility) Rules, 2014 is annexed to this report as Annexure-B.

TERMS OF REFERENCE OF THE BOARD COMMITTEES

The terms of references of the Audit Committee, Nomination and Remuneration
Committee, Risk Oversight Committee, IT Strategy Committee, and Corporate Social
Responsibility Committee are provided in the Corporate Governance Guidelines. The
Corporate Governance Guidelines are available on website of the Company
www.lendingkartfinance.com.

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS

The Company’s Internal Financial Control systems are commensurate with the nature of
its business and the size and complexity of its operations.

The Company has put in place adequate internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements. Such a system has been designed to provide for:

* Adoption of accounting policies in line with applicable accounting standards;
* Proper recording of transactions with internal checks and reporting mechanism; and
* Compliance with applicable statutes, policies, management policies, and procedures.

The management of the Company periodically reviews the financial performance against
the approved plans across various parameters and takes action, wherever necessary.

APPOINTMENTS, RE-APPOINTMENTS AND RESIGNATION OF
DIRECTORS & KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

During the year under review:

(i) Pursuant to Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013, Mr. Anand Pande
(DIN: 08233960) and Mr. Raichand Sardarmal Lunia (DIN: 01188845), Directors
of the Company, retire by rotation and being eligible, offers themselves for re-
appointment at the forthcoming annual general meeting;

(i) The members of the Company at the annual general meeting held on
30t September, 2020, appointed Mr. Thallapaka Venkateswara Rao (DIN:
05273533) as a non-executive independent director of the Company for a period of
3 (three) years with effect from 13t November, 2019;

(i) Mr. Kiranbir Nag (DIN: 07660247), non-executive director of the Company,
tendered his resignation effective from 6t July, 2020;
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(iv) Mr. Sudeep Bhatia (PAN: ADQPB9745G) was appointed as the Chief Financial
Officer of the Company with effect from 1st March, 2021; Mr. Mohit Bajaj, Chief
Financial Officer of the Company tendered his resignation effective from 10th
October, 2020; and Mr. Mithun Sundar, Chief Executive Officer of the Company
tendered his resignation effective from 16t February, 2021;

(v) The Board of Directors appointed Ms. Uma Subramaniam (DIN: 07434953) as an
additional non-executive independent director of the Company for a period of 3
(three) years with effect from 27t March, 2021 subject to confirmation by members
at the ensuing annual general meeting.

INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

Declaration of independence

The Independent Directors have tendered declaration that they meet the criteria of
independence as laid down under Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013.

Statement on Integrity, expertise, and experience of independent directors

Mr. Thallapaka Venkateswara Rao

Mr. Thallapaka Venkateswara Rao has an extensive experience of over 35 years in the
field of Banking, Foreign Trade and Housing Finance Sectors with specialization in
Management of Treasury, Investment and Corporate Finance Operations, Securitization
and Structured Finance, product development (Reverse Mortgage, etc.), Training,
Research, Capacity Building and Regulation and Supervision of Housing Finance
Institutions.

Mr. Rao is registered as an independent director in the data bank of independent directors
as required under the Companies Act, 2013, and has passed the online proficiency self-

assessment test conducted by the Indian Institute of Corporate Affairs.

Ms. Uma Subramaniam

Ms. Uma Subramaniam has an overall experience of over two decades in Department of
Financial Supervision, RBI, where she has gained fair knowledge of finance, risk
management and accounting working at different capacities across the department.

Ms. Subramaniam is registered as an independent director in the data bank of independent
directors as required under the Companies Act, 2013, and has passed the online
proficiency self-assessment test conducted by the Indian Institute of Corporate Affairs.
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In terms of the RBI Regulations, the Chairman of the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee has confirmed the fit and proper status of Ms. Uma Subramaniam,
Mr. Gaurav Mittal and Mr. Thallapaka Venkateswara Rao.

Furthermore, the Board of Directors at their meeting held on 5% August, 2021 evaluated
the performance of the Independent Directors. The Board of Directors are of the
opinion that the Independent Directors fulfill the conditions specified under the
Companies Act, 2013.

Mr. Gaurav Mittal

Mr. Gaurav Mittal served the Company as an Independent Director for a period of 3
years.

Mr. Mittal is registered as an independent director in the data bank of independent
directors as required under the Companies Act, 2013, and has passed the online
proficiency self-assessment test conducted by the Indian Institute of Corporate Affairs.

Mr. Mittal vacated the office on 27% June, 2021, on the expiry of his second term.
DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

Pursuant to Section 134(3)(c)and 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Directors
hereby state and confirm that:

(a) in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable Indian Accounting Standards
and Schedule 111 of the Companies Act, 2013 have been followed along with proper
explanation relating to material departures;

(b) they had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year and of the
profit and loss of the Company for the financial year ended 315t March, 2021,

(c) they have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the
Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

(d) the annual accounts have been prepared on a going concern basis; and

(e) they have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all
applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.
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COMPLIANCE OF APPLICABLE SECRETARIAL STANDARDS

The Company complies with all the applicable secretarial standards.

PARTICULARS OF REMUNERATION

The details as required to be disclosed under Rules 5(2) and 5(3) of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 are not applicable
for the FY 2020-2021.

INTERNAL COMPLAINTS COMMITTEE

The Company has in place a Policy on Prevention of Sexual Harassment at Workplace in
line with the requirements of the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace
(Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 and rules framed thereunder. During
the period under review, no complaints were received by the Internal Complaints
Committee established under the Policy for Prohibition, Prevention and Redressal of
Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace of the Company.

REIATED PARTY TRANSACTION

All contracts/arrangements/transactions entered into/by the Company during the year
under review with related parties were on arms’ length basis and in the ordinary course of
business of the Company. The Company has formulated a policy on Related Party
Transactions which is available on website of the Company www.lendingkartfinance.com.

There were no material contracts which are required to be disclosed pursuant to
Section 134(3)(h) of the Companies Act and rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules,
2014.

The details of other related party transactions entered during the year under review are
provided in Note No. 35 of the accompanying financial statements.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION,
FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS, AND OUTGO

(a) Conservation of Energy
(i) The Steps Taken or impact on the conservation of Energy

The Company continues to make all efforts to conserve and optimize the use of energy
including efficient use of office equipment, and like manners.
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(ii) The steps taken by the Company for utilizing alternate sources of energy

The Company already uses minimal energy, there is no cost-effective way to use any
alternate source of energy.

(iii) The Capital investment in energy conservation equipment

There was no capital investment made in energy conservation equipment.

(b) Technology Absorption

The Company uses the latest technology and equipment in the business.

The expenditure incurred on Research and Development: Nil

(c) Foreign exchange earnings and outgo

During the year under review, the Company had no foreign exchange earnings. The

foreign exchange outgo was I 118.80 Lakh towards professional fees and software
expenses.

AUDITORS AND THEIR REPORT

Statutory Auditors

M/s. S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP (Fitm Registration No. 301003E/E300005), Chartered
Accountants, were re-appointed as Statutory Auditors of the Company, for a second term
of 5 (five) consecutive years from conclusion of 23t annual general meeting till the
conclusion of the 28t annual general meeting. Your Company has received confirmation
from M/s. S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLLP regarding their eligibility under Sections 139 and 141
of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. The Auditors
reports for the financial year 2020-21 do not contain any qualification or reservation or
adverse remark.

Further, no fraud was reported by the auditors of the Company under Section 143(12) of
the Companies Act, 2013.

Secretarial Auditors

In accordance with the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with
the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014,
the Company had appointed M/s. Suthar & Surti, Company Sectetaries, to conduct the
Secretarial Audit of the Company for FY 2020-21. The Secretarial Audit Report for
FY 2020-21 is annexed herewith as “Annexure-C” to this Report. The Secretarial Audit
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Report for the financial year 2020-21 do not contain any qualification or reservation or
adverse remark.

MAINTENANCE OF COST RECORDS

During the period under review, the Company was not required to maintain cost records
as specified by the central government under sub-section (1) of Section 148 of the
Companies Act, 2013.

STATEMENT INDICATING THE MANNER IN WHICH FORMAL
ANNUAL EVALUATION HAS BEEN DONE

The Board completed the annual evaluation of its own performance as well as an
evaluation of the working of all the Board Committees, and the Independent Directors.
The Independent Directors evaluated the performance of the Chairman, the
non-independent directors, and the Board. The Nomination and Remuneration
Committee evaluated the performance of all individual Directors (excluding independent
directors).

SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS
OR COURTS

During the year under review, no significant and material orders passed by any regulator
or court or tribunal, which may impact the going concern status of the Company and its
operations in future.

RISK MANAGEMENT

In line with the RBI regulations, the Company has the Board committee known as the
Risk Oversight Committee. The Risk Oversight Committee of the Company, inter alia,
oversees the processes of risk assessment and minimization, monitors risk management
plans, and carries out such other functions as may be directed by the Board.

The Company has a Board approved Risk Management Framework in place. The
Framework, inter alia, provides for a sound and well-defined framework to address all
material risks of the Company and the governance structure.

The Board of Directors have not come across any risk which in the opinion of the Board
may threaten the existence of the Company.

VIGIL MECHANISM/WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY

The Company has established a Vigil Mechanism/ Whistle Blower Policy. The purpose
of this mechanism is to provide a framework to report concerns about unethical behavior,
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actual or suspected fraud or violation of the Company’s code of conduct and provide
adequate safeguards against victimization of the person availing this mechanism. The
Policy is placed on website of the Company www.lendingkartfinance.com. The Policy has
been appropriately communicated within the organization and is effectively operational.

The whistle-blower policy comprehensively covers processes for receiving, analyzing,
investigating, inquiring, taking corrective action, and reporting of the issues raised.
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Annexure-A

Management Discussion and Analysis - Lendingkart Finance Limited

Macroeconomic Scenatrio

The last financial year has been one of a kind, where countries across the world have been
hit hard physically, mentally, socially, financially and emotionally with an unexpected
outbreak of COVID-19 virus. The originally projected spike in the economy took a major
setback due to complete focus on saving lives and livelihoods amidst a once-in-a-century
crisis. The pandemic impacted both supply and demand in the economy with the policy
dilemma of “lives versus livelihoods”. The reforms, initiatives and measures taken at all
levels, were unique amidst all major economies and were implemented to provide some
cushion to absorb the pandemic shock. The country's GDP contracted by 7.3 percent in
financial year 2020-21. The sturdy credit growth to MSMEs provided the sector the much
needed credit flow to survive and grow. India’s real GDP is projected to record a 11.0%
growth in FY2021-22 and nominal GDP to grow by 15.4% — the highest since
independence.

Opportunity Landscape

Indian MSMEs sector contributes about 29% towards the GDP through its national and
international trade. There is a US$350 Bn gap in MSME lending; digital lenders expected
to bridge the gap through tech interventions, especially, Proliferation of digital infra driving
growth; further boost expected due to COVID induced lockdown such as India Stack — 1
Bn+ Aadhar, Account aggregator launch, GST registered entities — 10 Mn+, Digital book-
keeping and accounting tools, UPI growth — 3Bn Txns per month, Video KYC, E-Sign,
ENACH launch.

Budget allocation for MSMEs in FY22 more than doubled to Rs. 15,700 crore (US$ 2.14
billion) vis-a-vis Rs. 7,572 crore (US$ 1.03 billion) in FY21 as domestic business requires a
strong financial stimulus with concessional working capital loans to ensure adequate
liquidity is maintained in business operations from the government and financial institutes.

The time has never been so critical for Fintechs to make a real contribution to the economy
as the businesses need support at every stage of their operations to automate and leverage
the technology interventions to spearhead their recovery plan. Lending fintechs have
reached the nooks and corners of the country with their digital origination and delivery
systems, and this will be a key to providing access to credit across the country. They will
be the biggest game changer in reviving the SMEs and provide the much needed trickle
down of credit which both the Government and RBI has been focusing on. They will be
at the frontline to provide the end stage deliverability of services and capital.



Lendingkart has invested its resources in building a power packed utility for entire
ecosystem to leverage through its E2E platform 2gtht’ along with xIr8’, ‘cred8’,‘collec1(’,
‘Atom’/ “Zero Touch’ leveraging LK’s proptietary technology & DS capabilities.

2gthr

 platform

Zero Touch Collec10

Business Ovetrview

Lendingkart Finance Limited provides quick, easy and hassle-free working capital loans to
MSME:s for their business needs. Lendingkart aims to be central to providing the financing
to India’s 63 million MSMEs by leveraging Technology, Data Analytics, Machine Learning
and Artificial Intelligence.

Lendingkart has disbursed 17,210 loans to MSMEs in FY 21 amounting to Rs ~1100
Crores, and out of disbursed loans, ~35% loans were disbursed to the existing customers
of the Company. Though the company has offices at only three locations, it has disbursed
loans in more than 1800 cities and towns in India. The company has cumulatively touched
and improved lives of more than 1,20,000 small businessmen and have touched gross
disbursal of Rs 6,420 Crores to these customers.

Disbursement Value (Rs' 000 Crore) —

Total value 6.4 K crore mCP
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Lendingkart Finance Ltd clocked Rs 490 Cr as revenue in FY21 and Company’s Assets
Under Management (AUM) in FY 21 is Rs 2465 Crores, well diversified portfolio across
risk profiles, industries, geographies, etc demonstrating robust portfolio performance
which was also rewarded through the Credit rating upgraded to A- with stable outlook
during the peak pandemic situation.



Investing in cutting edge Information Technology Infrastructure

Lendingkart has been leading technology adoption among industry peers and has
continuously leveraged existing and emerging technologies to launch new partnerships,
enhance customer acquisition and servicing processes along with simplifying the back-
office.

Lendingkart Finance Limited uses a variety of technologies for lending use cases right from
customer on-boarding to credit evaluation till collections. The new age technology
solutions from Lendingkart Technologies have enabled the company to deliver cost
effective and state of the art efficient solutions for our customers. It has helped us in
strategic cost management for our entire operations.

Having built one of the largest MSME databases in the country with 3.5 billion data points
for 500k MSMEs by evaluating 1 million+ MSME applications, Lendingkart has taken the
next step of collaboration across the financial services ecosystem. Lendingkart ‘2gthr’
platform is going to power entire ecosystem through its E2E capabilities of:

e XIr8’: provides white label solution to partners (both offline and online) to use the
power of APIs to acquire and onboard customers digitally

e ‘cred8: LK has pioneered algorithm driven cash-flow based u/w models for
MSME segment with minimal human involvement

e ‘collec10’: building digital connectivity and digital collection processes to service
MSMEs anywhere along with strong pan India presence with 700+ agents and 60+
agencies

e ‘Atom’/Zero Touch’ The entire customer journey has been made seamless with
no scope of lapses by automating the checkpoints and modulrizing the funnel via

micro-processes, thereby reducing the turnaround time and increasing the coverage
of MSMEs being serviced

LK is well placed to act as the “perfect bridge” between the internet companies having
scores of B2B MSME customers and lenders with large balance sheet looking to penetrate
this segment and is is among the very few FinTech’s globally to provide E2E capabilities
from customer acquisition to collections via its digital platform products.
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The Company is also actively investing and deploying capabilities in Artificial Intelligence
(AI) and Machine Learning (ML) to enable superior customer experience at various touch
points along with investing in cloud and data infrastructure. Current credit model has the
ability to risk classify an application into 5 risk categories and objectively determine amount
eligibility based on risk profile. Better prediction of amount eligibility has resulted in
disbursal allocation to good customers over time. Lendingkart won the “Digital
Technology Award” this year and it continues to strive for excellence and building an IT
infrastructure that best serves SMEs in India.

Algorithm evaluated a_ppli_cations ('000) - Data points collected # (In Mn) —
500K applications 3.5 Bn data points
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Human Capital

Last year has been a year where world have encountered one of the most difficult phases
in the history of mankind’s existence. While entire country was dealing under COVID
pandemic but it was heart-warming to see how everyone came together and stood strong
in the face of the deadliest virus attack. At Lendingkart as well, organization held the fort



steady ensuring that our employees were well taken care of. The need of the hour was
empathy, selflessness and quick medical care.

0 The company started with an Employee Assistance program to help cope
employees staying at home for a prolonged period.

0 The company conducted webinars and emailers on employee health and wellness.

0 A COVID task force was formulated which provided helpline numbers to all
employees who can call those numbers if they need medicines, hospital beds,
oxygen concentrator, food and other items for their families, friends and
acquaintances.

0 This was followed by COVID leave for employees — 12 working days of leave over
and above the regular leave accrual.

0 Once it was time for vaccination, Lendingkart ensured that the employees get the
opportunity to vaccinate themselves under a safe environment. The vaccination
drive was not restricted to employees only but extended to their families, relatives
and friends.

In parallel, Lendingkart redefined the value proposition for the organisation. The company
went back to the blackboard to redefine our values and came up with 7 core values as part
of the organisation value system.

Customer obsession
Speed matters
Ownership Mindset
One Team

Think Big

First Time Right
Frugal Innovation

The value cascade involved an intensive framework where CXOs were actively involved
to disseminate the information within their teams. The core values were tied up with our
reward and recognition framework to drive the right set of behaviours amongst employees.
To make this a part of the organisation DNA, it was decided that it will be incorporated in
the performance appraisal as well. That is when the performance appraisal process
underwent a transformation. The company introduced 360-degree feedback for mid and
senior management which was linked to the 7 core values of the organisation. This was
followed by a calibration process wherein feedback was gathered from CXOs as part of
the development process for every individual. The robust Performance Management
Program has given an additional edge in developing the next generation and build future
leaders in the organisation.

Internal Control Systems

Lendingkart has an independent internal management assurance function which is
commensurate with its size and scale. It evaluates the adequacy of all internal controls and
processes and ensures strict adherence to clearly laid down processes and procedures, as



well as to the prescribed regulatory and legal framework. Lendingkart has further
strengthened its internal audit function by investing in domain specialists to increase
effectiveness of controls. The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors reviews the
internal audit reports and the adequacy and effectiveness of internal controls. During the
financial year under review, no material observation has been received from the Statutory
Auditors and the Internal Auditors of the Company on such controls.

Risk Management

The company has built a strong culture of managing risk in a structured manner. The risk
management framework focuses attention on key areas such as credit, liquidity, operational
and IT security risks.

Credit Risk

With advance risk assessment capabilities and evolved models for early warning triggers,
phasing out manual interventions which is subjective and prone to errors; LK has
pioneered an algorithm driven cash-flow based u/w models for MSME segment and
launched a robust “Cred8” platform that provides SME score as output, which includes
Lendingkart Score (300-900), Risk Bucket (A to F), Loan amount for 1/ 2/ 3 yr loan
duration, Expected bad amount rate and Key ratios such as EMI/ADB.

Business Vintage: 60% customers CIBIL Score: 57% of LK customers Avg. Daily Balance: 60% customers
have vintage of less than 3 years have bureau score of less than 700 have ADB of > Rs 50K
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These models are regularly monitored against desired outcomes for the organization and
are reviewed and revised as required.

Operational Risk

Operational risk is inherent to processes and systems and a dedicated team monitors
operational risks and incidents, including the robustness of various processes, systems and
information security related matters. The Company has invested in automating the
customer journey and the associated operational funnel by developing robust “Atom/



Zero Touch” platform. The customer journey has been modularized via micro-processes,
built in a product and industry agnostic fashion scalable across wide array of services.

IT Security Risk

Cybersecurity and InfoSec policies are continuously to mitigate the risk. Vulnerability
assessment and penetration testing is performed on regular basis to identify any anomaly.

0 The company follows the RBI master direction for IT framework applicable to
NBFC sector which includes, IT Operations, IS Audit, Business Continuity
Planning, I'T Service Outsourcing.

0 It takes the best practices guidelines references from ISO/IEC 27001 - Information
security management systems and ISO 22301 - Business continuity management
systems

0 IT ensures that Employee security awareness training and regular security audits are
also conducted to check the effectiveness of security controls.

Asset Liability Management

Borrowing & asset liability management function is a centralized activity carried out by the
finance team of the company in consultation with the management. The Capital Markets
team focuses on minimizing the cost of borrowings, liquidity management and control,
diversifying fundraising sources, managing interest rate risk and investing funds in
accordance with the criteria set forth in investment policy. Our borrowing sources include
public/private & small finance Banks, NBFCs, DFI, AMCs. Borrowing tenure is usually
longer than the maturity of company assets to maintain positive cash flow. Short term
liquidity is monitored on a dynamic basis to maintain adequate liquidity. Company reviews
its policy periodically to factor in macro and micro events. The company thus follows a
prudent strategy to ensure a solid foundation for its asset liability management.

Lendingkart has always kept continued focus on delivering innovative products and
maximizing our reach to SME customers and has become a benchmark in the lending
fintech domain. As we move ahead, continued investments in technology and digital
products will be maintained to solve the problem of the MSME segment in terms of
enhanced data availability and lending product delivery.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Lendingkart Finance Limited

Sd/-

Harshvardhan Lunia

Chairman & Managing Director
DIN: 01189114

Date: 5t August, 2021

Place: Ahmedabad



Annexure-B

Annual Report on CSR Activities for the Financial Year 2020-21

1.  Brief outline on CSR Policy of the Company.

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) initiative aims at having a long term sustainable
impact on the community. The CSR Policy of the Company gives an overview of the
projects or programs that could be undertaken by the Company from time to time.

The CSR Policy, znter alia, covers the following:

CSR Vision
- CSR Objectives
- Focus Areas
- Scope of the Policy

- Responsibility of the CSR Committee

- Governance Structure

- CSR budget and expenditure

- CSR implementation process

- CSR activities through external specialized agencies
- Monitoring & reporting

2. Composition of CSR Committee:

S1. Name of Director

Designation| Number of |Number of meetings
/ Nature of |meetings of CSR| of CSR Committee
Directorship| Committee held | attended during the

during the year year
1 Mzt. Gaurav Mittal* Chairman 2 2
2 |Mzr. Harshvardhan Lunia| Member 2 2
3 Mzt. Anand Pande Member 2 2
*

Mr. Gauray Mittal ceased to be the Chairman of the Committee w.e.f. 27% June, 2021.

3. Provide the web-link where Composition of CSR committee, CSR Policy and CSR
projects approved by the board are disclosed on the website of the company.

Composition of CSR
Committee

Lendingkart Composition of CSR Committee

(https://s3.ap-south-
1l.amazonaws.com/lendingkartfinance.com/CSR+Activities+of+ILend
ingkart.pdf)

CSR Policy

Lendingkart CSR Policy
(https://aadri-infin.s3-ap-southeast-

1.amazonaws.com/Corporate+Social+Resposibilty+Policy.pd

CSR projects approved
by the board

Lendingkart CSR projects approved by the board
(https://s3.ap-south-

1.amazonaws.com/lendingkartfinance.com/CSR+Activitiest+of+Iend
ingkart.pdf)



https://s3.ap-south-1.amazonaws.com/lendingkartfinance.com/CSR+Activities+of+Lendingkart.pdf
https://s3.ap-south-1.amazonaws.com/lendingkartfinance.com/CSR+Activities+of+Lendingkart.pdf
https://s3.ap-south-1.amazonaws.com/lendingkartfinance.com/CSR+Activities+of+Lendingkart.pdf
https://s3.ap-south-1.amazonaws.com/lendingkartfinance.com/CSR+Activities+of+Lendingkart.pdf
https://aadri-infin.s3-ap-southeast-1.amazonaws.com/Corporate+Social+Resposibilty+Policy.pdf
https://s3.ap-south-1.amazonaws.com/lendingkartfinance.com/CSR+Activities+of+Lendingkart.pdf
https://s3.ap-south-1.amazonaws.com/lendingkartfinance.com/CSR+Activities+of+Lendingkart.pdf
https://s3.ap-south-1.amazonaws.com/lendingkartfinance.com/CSR+Activities+of+Lendingkart.pdf
https://s3.ap-south-1.amazonaws.com/lendingkartfinance.com/CSR+Activities+of+Lendingkart.pdf

4.  Provide

the details of Impact assessment of CSR projects carried out in pursuance

of sub-rule (3) of rule 8 of the Companies (Corporate Social responsibility Policy)
Rules, 2014, if applicable (attach the report).

Not applicable for the financial year under review.

5. Details of the amount available for set off in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 7
of the Companies (Corporate Social responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and amount
required for set off for the financial year, if any.

S1. No. [Financial Year Amount available for set-[Amount required to be
off from preceding set-off for the financial
financial years (in Rs) |year, if any (in Rs)

Nil
6.  Average net profit of the company as per section 135(5).
% 1,722.44 Lakh
7. (a) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 135(5)

(b)

T 34.45 Lakh

Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the
previous financial years.

Nil
(©) Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if any
Nil
(d) Total CSR obligation for the financial year (7a+7b-7c).
X 34.45 Lakh
8. (a CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year:
Total Amount Amount Unspent (in Rs.)

Spent for the | Total Amount transferred |Amount transferred to any fund

Financ.ial to Unspent CSR Account as |specified under Schedule VII as
Year. (in Rs.) per section 135(6). per second proviso to section
135(5).
IAmount. Date of transfer.Name of] Amount. Date of
the Fund transfer.

3 85,060/-

X 33,60,000/-| 30t April, 2021 NA NA NA




(b) Details of CSR amount spent against ongoing projects for the financial year:
M @ 3) @ ) ©) D1 6 © [ o ih)
Sl Name of the Item from the | Local | Location of | Project | Amount |Amou| Amount |Mode Mode of
No Project. list of activities| area | the project. | duration. jallocated for] nt (transferred to| of Implementation -
in Schedule | (Yes/ the project | spent | Unspent |Imple Through
VII to the Act.| No). (in Rs.). |in the |[CSR Accountmentat] Implementing
current|  for the ion - Agency
financijproject as per| Direct
al Year| Section | (Yes/
(in 135(6) (in | No).
Rs.). Rs.).
State. [District. Name CSR
Registra
tion
number.
1. | Construction of |Clause 1) | Yes | Gujarat, 3years  [33,60,000 0 [33,60,000 No Shree Jain |
building premises | Promoting Ahmedabad Shwetambar
by Shree Jain |health care, Terapanthi
Shwetambar Sabha,
Terapanthi Clause (i) Ahmedabad
Sabha, Promoting
Ahmedabad, a |education, and
public charitable
trust for CSR |Clause (iii)
activities empowering
women
Total 33,60,000 0 33,60,000




(© Details of CSR amount spent against other than ongoing projects for
the financial year:

Ol @ [ @ [@®] 6 © [ @ ®
S1. [Name of [Item Local [Location of |AmountMode [Mode of
Nothe from thejarea |the project. spent |of implementation -
Project [listof |(Yes/ for the [imple Through
activitie [No). project mentatfimplementing
s in (in Rs.).fion - jagency.
schedul State. [Distri Direct Name. |CSR
e VII to ct. (Yes/ registratio
the Act. No). h number.
1. Distributi [Clause [Yes |Gujarat, 85,060 [No Ahmedaba |
on of (iif) Ahmedabad d Women's
sewing Action
machines fempowe Group, a
to a group fring public
of women women charitable
in trust.
associatio
n with
IAhmedab
ad
'Women's
Action
Group, a
public
charitable
trust.
Total 85,060
(d) Amount spent in Administrative Overheads: Nil
(e) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable: Not applicable

) Total amount spent for the Financial Year (8b+8c+8d+8e): X 85,060

(o) Excess amount for set off, if any:

SI.  [Particular Amount
No.
@) Two percent of average net profit of the 34,45,000

company as per section 135(5)
(i) [Total amount spent for the Financial Year 85,060
(i)  [Excess amount spent for the financial year [(ii)- [Nil

0]




(iv)  {Surplus arising out of the CSR projects orNil
programmes or activities of the previous financial
years, if any
(v) [Amount available for set off in succeeding Nl
tinancial years [(1i1)-(1v)]
9. (a Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years:
SI. [Preceding/Amount |Amount |Amount transferred to any  |Amount
No. [Financial transferredspentin [fund specified under remaining
Year. to the Schedule VII as per section [to be spent
Unspent [reporting [135(6), if any. in
CSR Financial NamelAmountl  Date of  [succeeding
Account Year (in |of the|(in Rs).| transfer. [financial
under Rs.). Fund years. (in
section Rs.)
135 (6) (in
Rs.)
Not applicable
(b) Details of CSR amount spent in the financial year for ongoing projects of
the preceding financial year(s):
D @ | O 4) Q) (©) @) ®) (©)
SI. [ProjecName [Financial [Project Total |Amount [Cumulativ [Status of
No [t ID. (of the [Yearin durationjamount [spent onle amount |the
Projectiwhich the allocate |the spent at  [project -
project was d for thejproject [the end of |[Complete
commenced project [in the [reporting |d
(in Rs.). reportin [Financial |/Ongoing
fey Year. (in
FinancialRs.)
1 Year
(in Rs).
Not applicable
10. In case of creation or acquisition of capital asset, furnish the details relating to the

asset so created or acquired through CSR spent in the financial year:

Not applicable




11.  Specity the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the
average net profit as per section 135(5). As above in point 8(b)

Sd/- Sd/-
Harshvardhan Lunia Anand Pande
Chairman & Managing Director Chairman

IDIN: 01189114 CSR Committee

DIN: 08233960

Date: 5t August, 2021 Date: 5% August, 2021




Form No. MR -3
[ Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
For the Financia Y ear ended March 31, 2021

To,

The Members

Lendingkart Finance Limited
CIN: U65910M H1996PL C258722
A-303/304, Citi Point,
Andheri-Kurla Road,

Andheri (East),

Mumbai — 400059, M ahar ashtra

We have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable Statutory provisions
and the adherence to good corporate practices by L endingkart Finance Limited (hereinafter
called as “the Company”). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a
reasonabl e basis for evaluating the corporate conducts / statutory compliances and expressing
our opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other
records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its
officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, we
hereby report that in our opinion, the Company has, during the audit period covering the
financial year ended on March 31, 2021 complied with the statutory provisions listed
hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and Compliance-mechanism
in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter.

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records
maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on March 31, 2021 according to the
provisions of:
1) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the Rules made thereunder;
2) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the Rules made
thereunder;
3) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;
4) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the Rules and Regulations made
thereunder;
5) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and
Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’):-

a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares
and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011; (not applicable during the period under
review)

b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading)
Regulations, 2015;



¢) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme
and Employee Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999; (not applicable
during the period under review)
d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt
Securities) Regulations, 2008;
€) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share
Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing
with client;
f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares)
Regulations, 2009; (not applicable during the period under review)
g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities)
Regulations, 2018; (not applicable during the period under review)
h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Depositories and Participants)
Regulations, 2018;
6) The Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 and its Rules, Regulations, Directors, Circulars
and Notifications.

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:
1) Secretaria Standardsissued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India.
2) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirement) Regulations, 2015.

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act,
Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above.

Wefurther report that

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive
Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in the
composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the period under review were
carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act.

Adeguate notice is given to al directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and details
notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and
obtaining further information and clarifications on the agendaitems before the meeting and for
meaningful participation at the meeting.

All decisions at Board Meetings and Committee Meetings are carried out unanimously as
recorded in the minutes of the meetings of the Board of Directors or Committee of the Board
as the case may be.

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company
commensurate with the size and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance
with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.



We further report that during the audit period the following specific events / actions took
place which have a major bearing on the Company’s affairs in pursuance of the above referred
laws, rules, regulations, guidelines, standards, etc:
1) The Company has increased the Authorized Share Capital of the Company from INR
44,54,75,000/- to INR 50,72,76,000/-.
2) The Company has altered and restated the Articles of Association
3) The Company has allotted, from time to time, Non-Convertible Debentures on private
placement basis aggregating to INR 230,00,00,000/- in various traches and Listed on
Bombay Stock Exchange Limited
4) The Company has allotted, from time to time, Unlisted Non — Convertible Debentures
on private placement basis aggregating to INR 177,50,00,000/- in various traches.

For, Suthar & Surti
Company Secretaries
UCN: P2018GJ068000

Sd/-
Jay Surti

Partner

Mem. No.. A44966

COP No.: 18712

UDIN: A044966C000737515

Date: August 5, 2021
Place: Ahmedabad



To,

Annexureto the Secretarial Audit Report

The Members

Lendingkart Finance Limited
CIN: U65910M H1996PL C258722
A-303/304, Citi Point,
Andheri-Kurla Road,

Andheri (East),

Mumbai — 400059, M ahar ashtra

Our report of even date isto be read along with this |l etter.

1.

Maintenance of secretarial records is the responsibility of the management of the
Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based
on our audit.

We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain
reasonabl e assurance about the correctness of the contents of the secretarial records. The
verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial
records. We believe that the processes and practices, we followed provide a reasonable
basis for our opinion.

We have not verified the correctness of appropriateness of financia records and books
of accounts of the Company.

Wherever required, we have obtained the Management Representation about the
compliance of laws, rules and regul ations and happening of events etc.

The compliance of the provisions of corporate and other applicable laws, rules,
regulations, standards is responsibility of management. Our examination was limited to
the verification of procedures on test basis.

The Secretarial Audit Report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the
Company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted
the affairs of the Company.

For, Suthar & Surti
Company Secretaries
UCN: P2018GJ068000

Sd/-

Jay Surti

Partner

Mem. No.: A44966

COP No.: 18712

UDIN: A044966C000737515
Date: August 5, 2021

Place: Ahmedabad
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Key audit matters How our audit addressed the key audit matter

such exposures as Standard, subject to
specified conditions. in accordance with
its Board approved policy as described in
MNote 7.

The Company has recorded a
management overlay as part of its ECL,
to reflect among other things an increased
risk of deterioration in macro-economic
factors cavsed by Novel Coronavirus
(COVID-19) pandemic. In accordance
with the guidance in Ind AS 109, the
management overlay estimate takes into
account reasonable and supportable
information,

In  view of the high degree of
management’s judgement invelved in
estimation of ECL, accentuated by the
COVID-19 pandemic, it is a key audit
matter.

Other Information

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Directors report, but does not include the financial statements
and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not EXpress any
form of assurance conclusion thereon,

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether such other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board ol Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with
respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial
position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity
of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the
Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. This responsibility also includes maintenance of
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of
the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities: selection and application of
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant 1o the
preparation and presentation of the financial statemenis that give a true and fair view and are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
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or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

I As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order™), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the

-

“Annexure 17 a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far
as it appears from our examination of those books:

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other
Comprehensive Income. the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with
by this Report are in agreement with the books of account:

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified
under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015,
as amended;

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2021 taken
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2021
from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act:

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to these financial
statements and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in
“Annexure 2" to this report;

(£) In our opinion, the managerial remuneration for the year ended March 31, 2021 has been paid /
provided by the Company to its directors in accordance with the provisions of section 197 read
with Schedule V to the Act;

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and 1o the best of
our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i, The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial
position:

ii.  The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses:
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iti.  There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

For s.Kk. Batliboi & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Ejrm Registration Number: 301003E/E300003

=

-

per Jayesh Gandhi

Partner

Membership Number; 037924
UDIN: 21037924 AAAADSR34]

Place of Signature: Mumbai
Date: May 12, 2021
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Annexure 1 referred (o in paragraph 1 under the heading “Report on other legal and regulatory
requirements” of our report of even date

Re: Lendingkart Finance Limited

(i) ()

(b)

(c)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

v)

{vi)

(vii) (a)

(b)

The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative
details and situation of fixed assets.

Fixed assets have been physically verified by the management during the year and no material
discrepancies were identified on such verification.

According to the information and explanations given by the management, there are no
immovable properties, included in property, plant and equipment of the company and
accordingly, the requirements under paragraph 3(i)(c) of the Order are not applicable to the
Company.

The Company's business does not involve inventories and, accordingly, the requirements under
paragraph 3(ii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the company has not granted any
loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or other parties
covered in the register maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly,
the provisions of clause 3(iii) (a), (b) and (c) of the order are not applicable to the Company and
hence not commented upon.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there are no loans,
investments. guarantees, and securities given in respect of which provisions of section 185 and
186 of the Companies Act 2013 are applicable and hence not commented upon.

The Company has not accepted any deposits within the meaning of Sections 73 to 76 of the Act
and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended). Accordingly, the
provisions of clause 3(v) of the Order are not applicable,

To the best of our knowledge and as explained, the Central Government has not specitied the
maintenance of cost records under Section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, for the services
of the Company.

The Company is regular in depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed statutory dues
including provident fund, employees” state insurance, income-tax, goods and service tax, cess
and other statutory dues applicable to it.

As informed. the provisions of sales-tax, duty of custom, duty of excise and value added taxes
are currently not applicable to the Company.,

According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in
respect of provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, goods and service tax, cess
and other statutory dues were outstanding. at the year end, for a period of more than six months
from the date they became payable,
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(c)

{viii)

[i.'\]

(x)

(xi)

(xii)

(xiii}

{(xiv)

(xv)

As informed, the provisions of sales-tax, duty of custom, duty of excise and value added taxes
are currently not applicable to the Company.

According 1o the information and explanations given to us, there are no dues of income tax,
goods and service tax and cess which have not been deposited on account of any dispute.

As informed, the provisions of sales-tax, duty of custom, duty of excise and value added taxes
are currently not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given by the management, the
Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowing to a financial institution, bank
or dues to debenture holders,

The Company did not have any outstanding loans or borrowing dues to government during the
vear,

According to the information and explanations given by the management, the Company has not
raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer and hence not commented
Upon.

Further, monies raised by the Company by way of debt instrument and term loans were applied
for the purpose for which those were raised, though idle/surplus funds which were not required
for immediate utilization were gainfully invested in liquid assets payable on demand.

Based upon the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting the true and fair view
of the financial statements and according to the information and explanations given by the
management, we report that no fraud by the Company or no fraud on the Company by the
officers, and employees of the Company has been noticed or reported during the year,

According to the information and explanations given by the management, the managerial
remuneration has been paid / provided in accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by
the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013,

In our opinion, the Company is not a nidhi company. Therefore, the provisions of clause 3(xii)
of the order are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

According to the information and explanations given by the management, transactions with the
related parties are in compliance with section 177 and 188 of the Act where applicable and the
details have been disclosed in the notes to the financial statements, as required by the applicable
accounting standards.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the
balance sheet, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of
shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year under review and hence, reporting
requirements under clause 3(xiv) are not applicable to the Company and, not commented upon.

According to the information and explanations given by the management, the Company has not
entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him as referred
to in section 192 of Companies Act, 2013.
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(xwi) According to the information and explanations given to us, we report that the Company has
registered as required. under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934,

For 5.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAL Figm Registration Number: 301003E/E300005

per Jayesh Gandhi
Partner
Membership Number: 037924
UDIN: 21037924AAAADSE34 ]

Place of Signature: Mumbai
Date: May 12, 2021
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to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded
as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company: and (3) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the
company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting With Reference to
these Standalone Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to
these standalone financial statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management
override of controls, maierial misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also,
projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to
these standalone financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial
control over financial reporting with reference to these standalone financial statements may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion. the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls over financial
reporting with reference to these standalone financial statements and such internal financial controls over
financial reporting with reference to these standalone financial statements were operating effectively as at
March 31, 2021, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 301003E/E300005

per Jayesh Gandhi

Partner

Membership Number: 037924
UDIN: 21037924 AAAA SE341

Place of Signature: Mumbai
Date: May 12, 2021




Lendingkart Finance Limited
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2021

(% in fokhs uniess otherwise stated)

: Particulars _Notes | As at 31 March 2021 | As at 31 March 2020
Assets
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 5 28,786.04 5,049.52
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents & 14,096.80 11,296.78
Loans 7 1,93,869.25 2,12,688.51
Other financial assets B 71,667.62 2,868.74
2,44,419.71 2,31,903.55
Non-financial assets
Current tax assets (Net) 9 24.55 162.08
Deferred tax assetl (Net) 10 3,986.68 1,858.65
Property, plant and equipment 11 160.55 307.92
Intangible assets 12 67,12 119.58
Intangible assets under development 14541 45.45
Right-of-use assets 11 2,339.07 3,213.65
Other non-financial assets 13 455.27 588.50
7,178.65 6,295.83
Total assets 2,51,598.36 2,38,199.38
Liabilities and Eguity
Liabilities
Financial liabilities
Debt Securities 14 67,550.59 44 407.37
Borrowings (Other than debt securities) 15 93,092.62 1,10,561.24
Subordinated Debt 16 2,529.12 2,528.44
Other financial liabilities 17 11,112.93 7,374.86
1,74,285.26 1,64,871.91
Non Financial liabilities
Current tax liabilities (net) 18 1,189.18 .
Provisions 19 383.52 378.47
Other non-financial liabilities 20 1,579.03 661.75
3,151.73 1,040.22
Equity
Equity share capital 21 4,418.79 4,418.79
Other egquity 22 69,742.58 67,868.46
74,161.37 72,287.25
Total liabilities and equity 2,51,598.36 2,38,199.38
Summary of significant accounting policies 3

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements

For 5. R. BATUBOI & CO. LLP
Charterad Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration number : 301003E/E300005

Per Jayesh Gandhi
Partner
Membership No. 03

Place : Mumbal
Date : May 12, 2021

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

*

Chairman & Managing Director
DIN No. 01189114

Sudeep Bhatia

Chief Financial Officer

-

Umesh Navani
Company Secretary

Membership No. 098112 Membership No. A40899

Place : Mumbai

Date : May 12, 2021




Lendingkart Finance Limited

Statement of Profit & Loss for the year ended March 31, 2021

(¥ In lokhs unless otherwise stated)

Particulars ;| Einigteex | SESrsie yaur endaiRr eyt ehn |
: : 31 March 2021 .31 March 2020

Revenue from operations
Interest iIncome 23 458,086.78 44,267 85
Gain on assignment of loans 24 264,74 1,721.87
Total Revenue from operations 48,351.52 45,989.72
Other Income 23 693.58 440.56
Total income 49,045.10 46,430.28
Expenses
Finance Costs 26 18,247.93 17,716.50
Fees and commission expenses 27 1,2372.711 729.80
Impairment of financial instruments 28

Additional cowid provisions (Refer note 28) 6,783.58 1,441.44

Other provisions 10,984.94 10,506.739
Employee Benefit expenses 9 3,638.58 4,943.77
Depreciation and amortisation expenses ki 684.00 629.99
Ciher Expenses i1 4,652.56 b,267.71
Total Expenses 46,229.30 42,236.00
Profit before Tax 2,815.80 4,194.28
Tax Expense : 32
- Current tax 3,128.07 1,407.18
- Prior period Tax adjustments - 3.28
- Deferred tax (income) / expense [2,144.21) (185.27)
Total Tax Expenses O83.86 1,225.19
Profit after tax 1,831.94 2,969.09
Other comprehensive income
(a) tems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Remeasurement galn / (losses) on defined benefit plans 64,24 (5.37)
Tax impact on above az (16.19) 1.56
Other cemprehensive income, net of tax 48.05 (3.81)
Total Comprehensive Income 1,879.99 2,965.28
Earning per equity share: [in absolute %] 33
Basic 4.15 7.09
Diluted 4.15 7.09
Summary of significant accounting policies 3

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements

For 5. R. BATLIBOI & CO. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Fipn Registration number ; 301003E/E300005

Per Jayesh Gandhi
Partner
Membership No. 0379

Place : Mumbal
Date : May 12, 2021

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Chairman & Managing Director

DIN No. 01189114 (_.D
Sudeep Bhatia Umesh Navani

Chief Financial Qfficer Company Secretary
Membership No. 098112 Membership No. A4D899

Place : Mumbai

Date : May 12, 2021




Lendingkart Finance Limited

statement of changes in equity for the year ended March 31, 2021

{% in lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Equity share capital

Particulars No of shares |  Amount
Balance as at March 31, 2019 3,89,85,920.00 3,898.59
Changes in equity share capital during the year 52,02,011.00 520.20
Balance at March 31, 2020 4,41,87,931.00 4,418.79
Changes in equity share capital during the year < -
Balance at March 31, 2021 4,41,87,931.00 4,418.79
Other equity
Reservesand Surplus [ e
~ Particulars iesyResurities ol ERtetalred S EC Tt R REIR

: premium earnings perRBI m e ’
Balance as at April 01, 2019 46,799.81 (3,041.11) 688.08 348 44, 450.26
Profit after tax - 2,965.30 - - 2,965.30
Other comprehensive income [net of tax) - 381 . (3.81) -
Transferred to Statutory Reserve ufs section 45-1C
of RBI Act, 1934 - (593.08) 5593.06 - -
Premium on issue of Equity Shares 20,479,280 - - 20,479.80
Share issue expense (26,89} - - - (26.85)
Balance at March 31, 2020 67,252.72 (665.06) 1,281.14 (0.33)] 67.868.47
Profitafter tax - 1.879.59 - 1,879.99
Other comprehensive income [net of tax) - {48.05) . 48.05 -
Transferred to Statutory Reserve u/s section 45-IC
of RBI Act, 1934 {376.00) S0 i i
Premium on issue of Equity Shares - E < -
Share issue expense {5.88) - - - {5.88)]
Balance at March 31, 2021 67,246.84 790.88 1,657.14 47.72 69,742.58
Summary of significant accounting policies 3

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the finandial statements

For 5. R. BATLIBOI & CO. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration number : 301003€/E300005

Per layesh Gandhi
Partner

Membership No. 037924

Place ;: Mumbai
Date : May 12, 2021

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Lendin

rshvardhan Lunia

inance Limited

Chairman & Managing Director

DIN No. 01185114

e

L

Sudeep Bhatia

Chief Financial Officer

Membership No. 09

Place : Mumbai
Date : May 12, 2021

8112

LD

el

Umesh Mavani

Company Secretary
Membership No. A40899




Lendingkart Finance Limited

Cash flow statement for the year ended March 31, 2021 (% in lokhs unless otherwise stoted)
&0 Particulars Tl . ¥k s ‘;‘Mhrth'meﬂdﬁd F‘? Wvﬁdm 1
i} ] 1% Gl T SRR T Mareh 2021 s e L0 3T e
Operating activities
Profit before tax 2,815.80 4,194.28
Adjusted for:
Impact of EIR accounting of financial assets G48.67 668.19
Impact of EIR accounting of financial liabilities (131.90) (242.50)
Uplrant gain on direct assignment {264.74) [1,721.87)
Guarantee fees {134.30) 1,119.08
Provision for gratuity (1.98) 76.78
Provision for leave benefit 7.03 (32.89)
Impairment of loans 9,174.38 1,925.10
Impairment of ather financial assets B48.27 24.54
Bad debt written offs 7.945.88 10,004.49
Discount on Commercial Paper 2.35 176.97
Depreciation and amartisation 684.01 629,99
Interest on bank deposits {918.11) 1,380.87)
Interest on borrowings and debt securities 17,730.24 15,904 34
Interest on financial lease liability 3185.79 378,32
Reversal of Lease equalisation reserve - (71.30)
Loss/{prafit) on sale of property, plant and equipment .02 311
Actuarial gain / { loss) recognised in other comprehensive income 64.24 {5.37)
Cash from operations before working capital changes = 38,658.65 31,650.38
Changes in working capital:
« (Increase) / decrease in loans 1,050.34 (1,02,934.76)
- |Increase) / decrease in other financial Assets (5,182.41) (994.74)
- [Increase) / decrease in other non financial Assets 267.53 {1,239.20)
- Increase [ (decrease) in other financial liabilities 3,738.07 2,570.61
- Increase / (decrease) in other non financial liabilities 917.32 218.98
Cash generated from operating activities 39,449.50 (70,728.75)
Income tax paid {net} {1,801.36) (1,321.61)
Net eash flows from / (used in) operating activities ' : 2 37,648.14 »E [72,050.36)
Investing activities:
Purchase of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets 287 44 {437.64)
Proceeds from sale of Nxed assets E 0.10
Fixed deposit matured {2,800,02) [3.971.16)
Interest received on bank deposit 918.11 1,358,85
Net cash generated from / {used in) Investing activities {1,594.47) . {3,049.85)
Financing activities:
Issue of equity share capital (including securities premium) - 21,000.00
Share issue expenses (5.88) {26.89)
Proceeds from inter-carporate loan - 1,000.00
Repayment of inter-corporate loan - (1,000.00)
Proceeds from debt securities 40,750.00 30,897.50
Repayment of debt securities (19,272.80) (21,908.18)
Froceeds from other than debt securities 37.510.00 85,598.66
Repayment of other than debt securities (51,487.61) {60,929.27)
Change in Cash Credit / Overdraft 3,228.72 1,889.97
Repayment of lease liabilities (385,79) (530.73)
Praceeds/[Repayment) from securitisation liability {1,532.60) 22,660.56
Repayment of finance cost 121,121.19) [15,052.63)

Net cash generated from financing activitles {12,317.15)  B3,598.9%




Lendingkart Finance Limited

Cash flow statement for the year ended March 31, 2021 [T in lakhs unless otherwise stated)
[ Fortheyearended | Forthe yearended
i e Ny i) Lt LR T ke P
LA : 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Net Increase / [decrease) in cash and cash equivalents ; ik V737365 ] s A R sRT 22
Cash and cash eguivalents as at the beginning of the year 5,045.52 16,550.74
Cash and cash equivalents as atthe end of theyear | 2878604 508952
Components of cash and cash equivalents
Cash in hand -
dalances with banks
- With banks in current accounts 6,585.32 5,049.52
- In deposit accaunts with original maturity of less than 3 months 22,200.72 -
Cash and cash equivalents : 28,786.04 | : 5,049.52
The above cash fliow statement has been prepared under the Indirect method as prescribed in Ind AS - 7 on Statement of cash-
Mows.
Summary of significant accounting policies i

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements

For 5. R. BATLIBOI & CO. LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Lendingk ance Ijmith
ICAI Firm Registration number : 301003E/E300005

rshvardhan Lunia
Chairman & Managing Director
Per Jayesh Gandhi
Partner

)
ST DIN No. 01189114 [ :»D
Membership No. 03792 [J| \ |
\'\T‘I . L

Place : Mumbai
Date : May 12, 2021

— Sudeep Bhatia Umesh Navani
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
Membership No. 098112 Membership No. 440899

Place : Mumbai
Date : May 12, 2021










Lendingkart Finance Limited
Motes forming part of financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021
(% in Lakhs unless otherwise stoted)

b. Net gain on fair value changes
The realised gain from financial instruments at FVTPL represents the difference between the carrying amount of
a financial instrument at the beginning of the reporting periad, or the transaction price if it was purchased in the
current reporting period, and its settlement price.

The unrealised gain represents the difference between the carrying amount of a financial instrument at the
beginning of the period, or the transaction price If it was purchased in the current reparting period, and its carrying
amaount at the end of the reporting period.

c. Rendering of services
The Company recognises revenue from contracts with customers based on a five-step model as set out in Ind AS
115 to determine when to recognize revenue and at what amount.

Revenue is measured based on the consideration specified in the contract with a customer and excludes amounts
collected on behalf of third parties. Revenue from cantracts with customers is recognized when services are
provided and it is highly probable that a significant reversal of revenue is not expected to occur.

If the consideration promised in a contract Includes a variable amount, an entity estimates the amount of
consideration 1o which it will be entitled in exchange for rendering the promised services to a customer. An
amount of consideration can vary because of discounts, rebates, refunds, credits, price concessions, incentives,
performance bonuses, or other similar items. The promised consideration can alsa vary if an entitiement to the
consideration is contingent on the occurrence or non-occurrence of a future event.

(i) Recognition of expenditures

a. Finance costs
Borrowing costs on financial liabilities are recognised using the EIR.

b. Fees and commission expenses
Fees and commission expenses which are not directly linked to the sourcing of financial assets/ liabilities, such as
commission/incentive incurred on value added services and products distribution, recovery charges and fees
payable for management of portfolio etc., are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss on an accrual basis,

c. Taxes
Expensed are recognized net of the Goods and Services Tax/Service Tax, except where credit for the input tax is
npt statutorily permitted.

(iii) Financial Instruments

A financial instrument Is defined as any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial
liability or equity instrument of another entity,

a. Date of recopnition
Financial assets and liabilities, with the exception of loans, debt securities and borrowlngs are initially recognised
on the trade date, i.e,, the date that the company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.
Loans are recognised when funds are transferred to the customers’ account. The company recognises debt
securities and borrowings when funds are received by the company. !

e




Lendingkart Finance Limited
Motes farming part of financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

(% in Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

b.

Initial measurement of financial instruments

The classification of financial instruments at initial recognition depends on their contractual terms and the business
model for managing the instruments. Financial instruments are initially measured at thelr fair value, except in the
case of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded at FYTPL, transaction costs are added to, or subtracted
from, this amount. When the fair value of financial instruments at initial recognition differs from the transaction
price, the company accounts for the Day one profit or loss, as described below.

Day one profit or loss

When the transaction price of the instrument differs from the fair value at origination and the fair value is based
on a valuation technique using only inputs observable in market transactions, the company recognises the
difference between the transaction price and fair value in net gain on fair value changes.

Measurement categories of financial assets and liabilities

The company classifies all of its financial instruments based on the business model for managing the assets and
the assets contractual terms, measured at either:

= amortised cost

#  fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI)

= fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

(iv) Financial assets and liabilities

a. Bank balances, Loans, Trade receivables and financial assets at amortised cost

The company measures Bank balances, Loans and other financial assets at amortised cost if both of the following
conditions are met:
= The financial asset is held within a business model with the objective to hold financial assets in arder to
collect contractual cash flows.
# The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest (SPPI) an the principal amount outstanding.

The details of these conditions are autlined below.

~ Business model assessment

The Company determines its business model at the level that best reflects how it manages groups of financial
assets to achieve its business objective, The Company's business model is not assessed on an instrument by
instrument basis, but ata higher level of aggregated portfolios.

Ifcash flows after initial recognition are realised in a way that is different from the Company’s original expectations,
the Company does not change the classification of the remaining financial assets held in that business mod el, but
incorporates such information when assessing newly originated financial assets going forward. The business model
of the Company for assets subsequently measured at amortised cost category Is to hold and collect contractual
cash flows.

# The SPPI test
As a second step of its classification process the company assesses the contractual terms of financial to identify
whether they meet the SPPI test,

‘Principal” for the purpose of this test is defined as the fair value of the financial asset at initial recognition and may
change over the life of the financial asset {for example, if there are repayments of principal or amortisation of the
premium/discount).

The most significant elements of interest within a lending arrangement are typically the consideration for the time
value of money and credit risk. To make the SPP| assessment, the company applies judgement and considers
relevant factors such as the currency in which the financial asset is denominated, and the period for which the
interest rate is set. )




Lendingkart Finance Limited
Notes farming part of financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021
{% in Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

b. Debt securities and other borrowed funds
After initial measurement, debt issued and other borrowed funds are subsequently measured at amortised cost,
Amortised cost Is calculated by taking into account any discount or premiurn on issue funds, and costs that are an
integral part of the EIR,

€. Financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
Financial assets and financial liabilities in this category are those that are not held for trading and have been
either designated by management upan Initial recognition or are mandatorily required to be measured at fair
value under Ind A5 109, Management only designates an instrument at FYTPL upon initial recognition when one
of the following criteria are met. Such designation is determined on an instrument-by-instrument basis:

= The designation eliminates, or significantly reduces, the inconsistent treatment that would otherwise arise
from measuring the assets or liabilities or recognising gains or losses on them on a different basis; Or

The liabilities are part of a group of financial abilities, which are managed, and their performance evaluated
on a fair value basis, in accordance with a documented risk management or investment strategy; Or

v

The liabilities containing one or more embedded derivatives, unless they do net significantly modify the cash
flows that would otherwise be required by the contract, or it is clear with little or no analysis when a similar
instrument is first considered that separation of the embedded derivative(s) Is prohibited

¥

d. Financial assets at FVOCI
The Company classifies its financial assets as FVOCI, only if both of the following criteria are met:
# The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling the
financial assets; and
# Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are Solely Payments of Principal
and Interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding

Financial guarantees and undrawn loan commitments

Financial guarantees are initially recognised in the financial statements (within Provisions) at fair value, being the
premium/deemed premium received. Subsequent to initial recognition, the company's liability under each
guarantee is measured at the higher of the amount initially recognised less cumulative amortisation recognised in
the statement of profit and loss.

~ The premium/deemed premium is recognised in the statement of profit and loss on a straight line basis over
the life of the gpuarantee.

Undrawn loan commitments are commitments under which, over the duration of the commitment, the Company
Is required to provide a loan with pre-specified terms to the customer. Undrawn loan commitments are in the
scope of the ECL requirements.

The nominal contractual value of undrawn loan commitments, where the loan agreed to be provided is on market
terms, are not recorded in the balance sheet.

(v} Reclassification of financial assets and liabilities

The company does not reclassify Its financial assets subsequent to their initial recognition, apart from the
exceptional circumstances in which the Company acquires, disposes of, or terminates a business line. Financial
liabilities are never reclassified,

(vi} Derecognition of financial assets and liabilities

a. Derecognition of financial assets due to substantial modification of terms and conditions

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is

& : ':s'.-‘:_lderemsnised when the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset have expired, The company also




Lendingkart Finance Limited
Naotes farming part of financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021
(% in Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

derecognises the financial asset if it has both transferred the financial asset and the transfer gualifies for
derecognition.

A transfer only gualifies for derecognition if either:

# The company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset; Or

# The company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has
transferred control of the asset

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between:

# the carrying amount (measured at the date of derecognition) and

# the consideration received (including any new asset obtained less any new liability assumed) is recognised in
profit or loss,

Pass-through arrangements are transactions whereby the company retains the contractual rights to receive the
cash flows of a financial asset (the 'original asset'), but assumes a contractual obligation to pay those cash flows to
one or more entities (the "eventual recipients'), when all of the fallowing three conditions are met:

# The company has no obligation to pay amounts to the eventual recipients unless it has collected equivalent
amounts from the original asset, excluding short-term advances with the right to full recovery of the amount
lent plus accrued interest at market rates

# The company cannot sell or pledge the original asset other than as security to the eventual recipients. The
company has to remit any cash flows it collects on behalf of the eventual recipients without material defay. In
addition, the company is not entitled to reinvest such cash flows, except for investments in cash or cash
eguivalents including interest earned, during the period between the collection date and the date of required
remittance to the eventual recipients.

The company considers control to be transferred if and only if, the transferee has the practical ability to sell the
asset in its entirety to an unrelated third party and is able to exercise that ability unilaterally and without imposing
additional restrictions on the transfer.

When the company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards and has retained
control of the asset, the asset continues to be recognised only to the extent of the company's continuing
involvement, in which case, the company also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the
associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the compa ny has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of
the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration the company could be
required to pay.

If continuing involvement takes the form of a written or purchased option (or both) on the transferred asset, the
continuing involvement is measured at the value the company would be required to pay upon repurchase, In the
case of a written put option on an asset that is measured at fair value, the extent of the entity's continuing
involvement is limited to the lower of the fair value of the transferred asset and the option exercise price,

b. Financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged, cancelled or expires.
Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender an substantially different terms,
or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a
derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability, The difference between the carrying
value of the original financial liability and the consideration paid is recognised in profit or loss.




Lendingkart Finance Limited
Mates forming part of financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

(% in Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

{vii] Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and
recognition of impairment loss on the financial assets at amortized cost along with related undrawn
commitments and loans sanctioned but not disbursed (collectively known as exposure at default).

Overview of the ECL principles

The company records allowance for expected credit losses for all loans, other debt financial assets not held at
FVTPL. together with loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts, in this section all referred to as
‘financial instruments’. Equity instruments are not subject to impairment under Ind AS 109,

The ECL allowance is based on the credit losses expected to arise over the life of the asset (the lifetime expected
credit loss or LTECL), unless there has been no significant Increase in credit risk since origination, in which case,
the allawance is based on the 12 months’ expected credit loss {12mECL).

The 1ZmECL is the portion of LTECLs that represent the ECLs that result from default events on a financial
instrument that are possible within the 12 months after the reporting date.

Both LTECLs and 12mECLs are calculated on either an individual basis or a collective basis, depending on the nature
of the underlying portfolio of financial instruments.

The company has established a policy to perform an assessment, at the end of each reporting period, of whether
a financial instrument’s credit risk has increased significantly since initial recognition, by considering the change in
the risk of default occurring over the remaining life of the financial instrument.

Based on the above process, the company categorises its loans into Stage 1, Stage 2 and Stage 3, as described
below:

The Company classifies its financial assets in three stages having the following characteristics:

+ Stage 1: unimpaired and without significant increase in credit risk since initlal recognition an which a 12-month
allowance for ECL is recognised. Stage 1 loans alsa include facilities where the credit risk has improved, and the
loan has been reclassified from Stage 2.

+ Stage 2:a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition on which a lifetime ECL is recognised. Stage
2 loans also include facilities, where the credit risk has improved, and the loan has been reclassified from Stage
3.

» Stage 3: objective evidence of impairment and are therefore considered to be in default or atherwise credit
impaired on which a lifetime ECL is recognised.

For financial assets for which the company has no reasonable expectations of recovering either the entire
outstanding amount, or a proportion thereof, the gross carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced. This is
considered a (partial) derecognition of the financial asset,

. The calculation of ECLs

The company calculates ECLs to measure the expected cash shortfalls, discounted at an approximation to the EIR.
A cash shortfall is the difference between the cash flows that are due to an entity in accordance with the contract
and the cash flows that the entity expects to receive.

The mechanics of the ECL calculations are outlined below and the key elements are, as follows:

~ Probability of Default (PD)
The Frobability of Default is an estimate of the likelihood of default over a given time horizon. A default may
only happen at a certain time over the assessed period, if the facility has not been previously derecognised and
is still in the partfolio.
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recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from its initial
recognition. The company uses a provision matrix to determine impairment loss allowance on portfolio of its
assets. The provision matrix is based on its historically observed default rates over the expected life of the assets
and is adjusted for forward-looking estimates. At every reporting date, the historical observed default rates are
updated for changes in the forward-looking estimates.

{viii] Credit Guarantee Fund Trust for Micro and Small Enterprises (CGTMSE)

CGTMSE has been set up jointly by Ministry of MSME, Government of India and SID8I to catalyse flow of institutional
credit to Micra & Small Enterprises (MSEs). Over the past 18 years, CGTMSE has been instrumental in providing
Buarantee cover on credit extended by eligible Member Lending Institutions [MLIS] to MSEs.

The Company has also become the MLI in the same scheme and obtained sovereign guarantee cover of its portfolio.
Accordingly, the company has incorporated the benefit of this sovereign guarantee cover in calculation of impairment
of assets.

(ix) Write-offs

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off (either partially or in full) to the extent that there is no
realistic prospect of recavery. If the amount to be written off is greater than the accumulated loss allowance, the
difference is first treated as an addition to the allowance that is then applied against the gross carrying amount.
However, financial assets that are written off could still be subject to enforcement activities in order to comply with
the Company’s procedures for recovery of amounts due. Any subsequent recoveries are credited to impairment on
financial Instrument on statement of profit and loss.

{x) Determination of fair value

The company measures financial instruments, such as, derivatives at fair value at each balance sheet date. Fair value
is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liabllity in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the
transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

»

# In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
# Inthe absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principal or the most advantagesus market must be accessible by the company,

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when
pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that
would use the asset in (15 highest and best use.

The company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are
available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of
unobservable inputs.

In arder ta show how fair values have been derived, financial instruments are classified based on a hierarchy of
valuation techniques, as summarised below:
= Level-1 financial instruments
Those where the inputs used in the valuation are unadjusted quoted prices from active markets for identical

assets or liabilities that the company has access to at the measurement date. The COMmpany cons




Lendingkart Finance Limited
Wotes forming part of financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021
(% in Lakhs unless otherwise stoted)

as active only if there are sufficient trading activities with regards to the volume and liquidity of the identical
assets or liabllities and when there are binding and exercisable price quotes available on the balance sheet
date,

= Level-2 financial instruments

Those where the inputs that are used for valuation and are significant, are derived from directly or indirectly
observable market data available over the entire period of the instrument’s life. Such inputs include quoted
prices for similar assets or habllities in active markets, quoted prices for identical instruments in inactive
markets and observable inputs other than quoted prices such as interest rates and yield curves, implied
volatilities, and credit spreads. In addition, adjustments may be required for the condition or location of the
asset or the extent to which it relates to items that are comparable to the valued Instrument. However, if such
adjustments are based on unobservable inputs which are significant to the entire measurement, the company
will classify the instruments as Level 3,

» Level-3 financlal instruments
Those that include one or more unobservable input that is significant to the measurement as whole.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the company
determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based
on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting
period,

(xi) Foreign Currency translation

a. Functional and presentational currency
The company financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (%) which is also the functional currency of the
company.

b. Transactions and balances
Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded in the functional currency at the spot rate of exchange
ruling at the date of the transaction.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated into the functional currency at
the spot rate of exchange at the reporting date. All differences arising on non—trading activities are taken to other
income/expense in the statement of profit and loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured at historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the spot
exchange rates as at the date of recognition.

(xii) Leases

The company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the contract conveys
the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

a. Company as a lessee
The company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-term leases
and leases of low-value assets. The company recognises lease liabilities to make |zase payments and right-of-use
assets representing the right to use the underlying assets.

# Right-of-use assets

The company recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date the
underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The co 2

"
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for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognised in the statement of profit or loss unless the asset Is carried at
a revalued amount, in which case, the reversal is treated as a revaluation increase.

(xvii) Financial guarantees

Financial guarantees are initially recognised in the financial statements (within "other liabilities’) at fair value, being
the premium received. Subsequently, the liability Is measured at the higher of the amount of loss allowance
determined as per impairment requirements of Ind AS 109 and the amount recognised less cumulative amortisation.

Any increase in the lability relating to financial guarantees is recarded in the statement of profit and loss under
impairment of financial instruments. The premium received is recognised in the statement of profit and loss under
interest income on a straight-line basis over the life of the guarantee.

{xviii) Retirement and other employee benefits
a. Provident fund

b. Retirement benefitin the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme. The company has no obligation,
other than the contribution payable to the provident fund. The company recognises contribution payable to the
provident fund scheme as an expense, when an employee renders the related service. If the contribution payable
ta the scheme for service received before the balance sheet date exceeds the contribution already paid, the deficit
payable to the scheme is recognised as a liability after deducting the contribution already paid. If the contribution
already paid exceeds the contribution due for services received before the balance sheet date, then excess is
recognised as an asset to the extent that the pre-payment will lead to, for example, a reduction in future payment
or a cash refund.

€. Gratuity liability
Gratuity lability is a defined benefit plan and the costs of providing benefits under the defined benefit plan is
determined using the projected unit credit method.

Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding amounts
included in net interest on the net defined benefit llability and the return on plan assets (excluding amounts
included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability), are recognised immediately in the balance sheet with
a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through OC| in the period in which they occur.
Remeasurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods,

Past service costs are recognised in profit or loss on the earlier of:
# The date of the plan amendment or curtailment, and
~ The date that the Company recognises related restructuring costs

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or asset. The company

recognises the following changes in the net defined benefit obligation as an expense in the consolidated statement

of profit and loss:

# Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on curtailments and
nanroutine settlements; and

# Net interest expense or income

When the benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed, the resulting change in benefit that relates
to past service (‘past service cost’ or past service gain') or the gain or loss on curtailment is recognised
immediately in the statement of profit and toss. The Company recognises gains and losses on the settlement of a
defined benefit plan when the settlement accurs
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(xxiii) Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing profit after tax (excluding other comprehensive income)
attributable to the equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the
year.

Far the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity
shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year are adjusted for the affects
of all dilutive potential equity shares,

4. Critical accounting estimates and judgments

The preparation of the Company’s financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amount of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the accompanying
disclosures, as well as the disclosure of contingent fiabilities, Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could
result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future
periods,

Accounting estimates and judgments are used in various line items in the financial statements for e.g.:

Business model assessmeant

Fair value of financial instruments

Effective Interest Rate (EIR)

Impairment on financial assets

Provisions and other contingent liabilities

Provision for tax expenses

Residual value and useful life of property, plant and equipment
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5 Cash and cash equivalents

e ST v i (R3] T A Marech | Aza “March -
Particulars \ ¥ m;%f“?ru 1 b f&uij%nw
Cash on hand -
Balances with banks
- in current accounts 6,585.32 5.049.52
- In deposit accounts with maturity upto 3 months 22,200.72 .
Total 28,786.04 5,049.52

Short-term deposits are made for varying periods of between one day and three months, depending on the
immediate cash reguirements of the company, and earn interest at the respective short-term deposit rates. As at
March 31, 2021, fixed deposits of ® 362,49 are pledged against credit facilities (March 31, 2020: % NIL)

& Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents

T A T Asatsimarch | i
partciars .- Eht e
Fixed deposits with bank
Deposits - maturity less than 12 monthis 12,902.87 8,620.43
Deposits - matunty more than 12 months 1,193.93 2,676.35
Total 14,096.80 11,296.78

Fixed deposit earns interest at fixed bank depaosit rates. As at March 31, 2021, fixed deposits of % 12,244.76 (March

31, 2020: % 11,296.78) are pledged against credit facilities,

7 Loans
i, ~ Asat31March | Asat31March
~ Particulars 2021 2020
Term loans 2,10,045.78 2,19,624.47
Less: Impairment loss allowance [16,176.53) [6,935.96)
1,93,869.25 2,12,688.51
(Refer note 50 (C) for Credit risk)
(A} Out of Above
(i) Secured - =
Less: Impairment loss allowance 3 s
Total (i) 3 a
{il) Unsecured 2,10,045.78 2,19,624.47
Less: Impairment loss allowance (16,176.53) {6,935.96)
Total (ii) 1,93,869.25 2,12,688.51
Total (&) = (i) + (i) 1,93,869.25 2,12,688.51
(B) Out of Abave
(i} Public Sector s -
Less! Impairment loss allowance = =
Tatal (i} - .
(i} Others 2,10,045.78 2,19,624.47
Less: Impairmeant loss allowance (16,176.53) [6,935.96)
Tatal (ii) 1,93,869.25 2,12,688.51
Total (B] = (i} + (i) 1,93,869.25 2,12,688.51
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The Company has extended moratorium/deferment of term loan instalments falling due during the moratorium
period, March 01, 2020 to August 31, 2020, to its eligible borrowers, who opted for moratorium/deferment of
various instalments in line with RBI COVID-19 Regulatory Package notified vide circulars dated March 27, 2020 and
May 23, 2020. The Company has also followed Assel Classification and Provisioning guidelines issued by RBI
including guidelings |ssued vide circular dated April 17, 2020,

As the moratorium/deferment has been provided specifically to enable borrowers to tide over COVID-19
disruptions, the same has not been treated as changes in terms and conditions of loan agreements due to financial
difficulty ol the borrowers and, consequently, has not resulted in asset classification downgrade.

In line with RBI directions, gualified loans included loans outstanding as on March 01, 2020 including those which
were in SMA/Overdue category. As per its Board approved policy and in accordance with RBI guidelines, the loans
amounting to % 15,928.01 lakhs in SMA Overdue categories were extended moratorium relief. The company also
extended asset classification benefit in terms of paragraph 2 & 3 of RBI circular to loans amounting to £ 15,376.63
lakhs. The company made provisions in terms of paragraph 4 of the circular amounting to % 2,037.68 lakhs out of
which an amount of % 281.81 lakhs adjusted against slippages and fresh provisions in terms of paragraph & of the
circular, Residual provision in terms paragraph 6 of the circular stands at ® 1,755.87 lakhs as on March 31, 2021,

Hon'ble Supreme Court in a public interest litigation (Gajendra Sharma vs. Union of India & Anr) vide an interim
order dated September 03, 2020 (interim order) has directed that accounts which were not declared NPA till August
31, 2020 shall not be declared as NPA till further orders. Basls the said interim order, the Company has not classified
any account as NPA, as per RBI norms, alter August 31, 2020 which was not NPA as of August 31, 2020, Further in
light of the interim arder, even accounts that would have otherwise been classified as NPA post August 31, 2020
have not been classified as NPA till such time the Hon'ble Supreme Court rules finally on the matter. However,
during such period, the Company has done staging of the borrower accounts in accordance with ECL
model/framework under Ind AS.

The interim order granted to not declare accounts as NPA stood vacated on March 23, 2021 vide the judgement of
the Hon'ble 5C in the matter of Small Scale Industrial Manufacturers Association vs. UDI & Ors. and other connected
matters. In accordance with the instructions in paragraph 5 of the RBI circular no. RBIf2021-22/17D0R.
STR.REC.4/21.04.048/2021-22 dated April 07, 2021, the Company has carried out asset classification of the
borrower accounts as per the extant RBI instructions / IRAC norms, without considering any standstill in asset
classification and also done staging of the borrower accounts in accordance with ECL model/framewark under Ind
A5 in the financial statements for the half-year and year ended March 31, 2021,

Recognising the need for continued support to provide Covid-19 relief to various borrowers, RBI vide its circular
'Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises (MSME) sector - Restructuring of Advances' dated January 01, 2019 and
‘Resolution Framework for COVID 19 - related Stress’ dated August 06, 2020, allowed Lending Institutions to
restructure the debt, subject to certain conditions, provided the borrower's account was classified as standard with
the lender as on March 01, 2020.

The Company has extended restructuring relief to its eligible borrowers under guidelines issued by RBI and as per
Retructuring policy approved by Board of Directors. The restructuring relief has been extended to 14,636 loans with
an outstanding amount of ¥ 48,643.95 as on March 31, 2021,
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10

The Government of India, Ministry of Finance, vide its notification dated October 23, 2020, had announced COVID-
19 Relief Scheme for grant of ex-gratia payment of difference between compound interest and simple interest for
moratorium period of six maonth 10 borrowers in specified loan accounts as per the eligibility criteria specified in the
scheme. The Company has implemented the scheme and passed on the ex-gratia benefit amounting to % 1,666.79

lakhs to the eligible borrowers,

The Government of India, Ministry of Finance, vide its notification 'Asset Classification and Income Recognition
following the expiry of Covid-19 regulatory package' dated April 07, 2021, had announced to refund/adjust the
‘interest on interest’ charged to the borrowers during the moratorium period, i.e. March 1, 2020 to August 31, 2020
in conformity with the judgement of the Hon'ble Supreme Court of India in the matter of Small Scale Industrial
Manufacturers Association vs UQI & Ors. and other connected matters on March 23, 2021 Accordingly the
Company has estimated the amount of 2 60.66 lakhs and made provision for refund / adjustment to eligible

borrowers.
Other financial assets
P W - As at 31 March - As at 31 March
s i i B bt Sl :
Ll 1 2021 2020
Interest receivable on assignment of loans 1.092.60 780.12
Security deposits 674.49 581.69
Receivable from co-lenders 4,866.34 1,311.20
Others 1,750.79 226.28
Total 8,384.22 2,899.30
(Less) : Impairment allowance on other financial assets (716.60) (30.56)
Total 7,667.62 2,868.74
Current tax assets (nat)
e L As at 31 March As at 31 March
| Particulars o s
Advance income tax® 24.55 162.08
Total 24.55 162.08
*{net of provision for tax March 31, 2021: Nil (March 31, 2020; ¥ 1,902.50))
Deferred tax asset (Net)
-y 9L As at 31 March As at 31 March
2021 2020
Deferred tax asset on account of;
Prnv_lsmn for expenses allowed for tax purposes on payment basis under — 110,33
Section 43B of Income tax Act, 1961
Expected credil loss 3,787.61 1,750.18
Unamortised processing fee 318.42 221.01
Deferred tax on account of Ind AS 116 50.24 23.90
Deferred tax on account of Guarantee fees 247.85 325.88
Deferred tax on account of unwinding discount of Security Deposit 32.99 51.44
Difference between tax eciation and de iation ch
tax depreciati preciation charged for the 36,83 7.8
financial reporting
Interest on markel linked debentures 285.10 111.26
MAT credit entitlement * 42,10
Gross Deferred Tax Assets 4,871.75 2,663.82
Deferred tax liability on account of:
On account of securitisation and direct assignment 683.70 562.39
Unamartised borrowing cost 201.37 24278
Gross Deferred Tax Liabilities 885.07 B805.17
Deferred Tax Assets (Net) 3,986,568 1,858.65
Deferred tax asset recognized 3,986.68 1,858.65
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11 Property, plant and equipment

- : _ Property, plantand equipment |

Particulars Computers and | Furniture and Office’ e e

: | Networks. fistures equipments i
Cost
As at April 01, 2019 251.69 33.09 30.01 314.79 1,796.85
Additions 215.73 9.55 7113 296.40 1,908.21
Disposals 3.42 1.29 1.95 6.66 -
As at March 31, 2020 464,00 41,35 99.18 604.53 3,705.07
Additions 15.98 1.98 - 17.96 298.86
Dispiosals 3.94 - 0.17 4.11 811.76
As at March 31, 2021 476.04 43.33 99.01 6518.38 3,192.17
Accumulated depreciation
As at April 01, 2019 74.7% 7.06 6.82 BE.B4 124.18
Charge for the period 179.05 8.00 24.37 211.42 367.24
Dispasals 191 0.46 1.08 3.45 -
As at March 31, 2020 251.89 14.61 30.11 296.61 491.42
Charge for the period 123.84 6.98 31.04 161.86 463.75
Disposals 0.53 - 0.11 0.64 102.07
As at March 31, 2021 375.20 21.59 61.04 457.83 853.10
Net book value
As at March 31, 2020 212.11 26.74 69.07 307.92 3,213.65
As at March 31, 2021 100.84 21.74 37.97 160.55 2,339.07

12 Intangible assets

L Computer

Particulars: e
Cost
As at April 01, 2019 81.96
Additions 110.55
Disposals
As at March 31, 2020 192.51
Additions 5.93
Disposals -
As at March 31, 2021 198.44
Accumulated amortisation
As at April 01, 2019 21.61
Charge for the period 51.32
Disposals =
As at March 31, 2020 72.93
Charge for the period 5839
Disposals -
As at March 31, 2021 131,32

MNet book value
As at March 31, 2020 119.58
As at March 31, 2021 67.12
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13 Other non financial assets

" Particulars S R T TR
: o = 3 2021 2| 2020
Indirect tax credits available for utilisation 50.60 115.65
Prepaid expenses 213.37 222.26
Capital advances 32.43 £
Other advances 158.87 250.59
Total 455.27 588.50
14 Debt Securities
T e - | Asat31March | Asat31March
d P;ar_tl_mla_:__'s, Wi e =kl | 5T 2071 | 2020
(&) At amortised cost
(i) Secured®
Privately placed redeemable non-convertible debentures 58,676.97 38,785.80
(i) Unsecured
Borrowings by issue of commercial papers - 498.63
Total 58,676.97 39,284.43
(B) At FYTPL
(i) Secured*
Privately placed redeemable non-convertible debentures §8,873.62 5,122.94
Total 8,873.62 5,122.94
(C) Out of above
In India 46,273.31 36,080.13
Qutside India 21,277.28 8,327.23
Total 67,550.59 44,407.37

*The debenture are secured by:

extent of 1 to 1.25 times of outstanding amount of debentures).

Terms of Repayment - Debentures as at March 31, 2021

i) A charge by way of hypothecation of all book debts and receivables, present and future of the Company (To the

il) Corporate guarantee of the Holding Company for March 31, 2021 is % 44,823.77, March 31, 2020 is % 38,136.36

Original Maturity / Repayment 'frequem:lyr- "’Maﬁﬂili?ﬂﬁh’rterly'mp_iaym&ﬁt ' Yotal
Rate of interest ; : - 9%-12% | 12%-15%  15%-16% .
Due within 1 year
No. of instalments 19 i3 52
Amount 13,411.00 15,598.15 29,009.15
Due 1to 2 years
No. of instalments 16 4 20
Amount 9,161.00 9,397.02 18,558.02
Due 2 to 3 years
No. of instalments 1 3 1 5
Amount 128.00 7,700.00 2,000.00 9,828.00
Due 3 to 4 years
No. of instalments 4.00 = 4
Amount 8,100.48 8,100.48
Interest accrued and impact of EIR 2,054.94
Total 22,700.00 40,795.65 2,000.00 67,550.59
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Terms of Repayment - Debentures as at March 31, 2020
|Original Maturity / Repavment fraquenw | Monthly/Quarterly repayment
Rate of interest 12%:-15% | 15%-16%
Due within 1 year
Mo. of instalments 57 - 57
Amaunt 14,640.49 - 14,640.49
Due 1 to 2 years
No. of instalments 33 1 34
| Amount 14,495.87 1,000.00 15,495.87
Due 2 to 3 years
MNo. of instalments 3 4 s
Amount 7,147.24 4,000.00 11,147.24
Due 3 to 4 years
No. of instalments - 1 1
Amount - 2,000.00 2,000.00
Due 4 to 5 years
Mo. of instalments 1 - 1
Amount 0.26 - 0.26
Interest accrued and impact of EIR 6524.87
Total 36,283.86 7,000.00 43,908.73

Total

Terms of Repayment - Commercial papers as at March 31, 2021

Original Maturity / Repayment frequenw =2 | Bullet repayment
Rate of interest FEH : T a2ie0% T Total
Due within 1 year
No. of instalments - 5
Amount e -
Impact of undiscounted maturity charges and EIR x
Total - -

(=]

Terms of Repayment - Commercial papers as at March 31, 202

Original Maturity / Eepwment irequenw W e Bullet re avrnent
Rate of interest 3 | 12.90% - Total
Due within 1 year
No. of instalments 1 1
Amount 500.00 500.00
Impact of undiscounted maturity charges and EIR (1.37)
Total 500.00 498.63

(e

‘l.l"1=r.,L
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15 Borrowings (Other than debt securities)

e [ AsstaiMarch| Asat3iMarch
T SHEy 2021 2020
(A) At amortised cost
(i) Secured*
Term loans
fraom banks 42,601.78 46,233.94
from other than banks 24,492.04 34,639.77
Securitisation liabilities 21,127.96 22,660.56
Loans repayable on demand
Overdraft from bank 1,035.76 948.38
Cash credit from banks 2,698.59 3,941.58
Cash credit from other than banks 1,136.49 1,511.54

93,092.62 1,09,935.77
(i) Unsecured

Term loans
from other than banks - 625.46
- 625.46
Taotal 93,092.62 1,10,561.24
(B) Out of above

In India 93,092.62 1,10,561.24

Outside India - -
Total 93,092.62 1,10,561.24

* The term loans/ working capital demand loans/ cash credit/ overdraft are secured by:

i} & charges by way of hypothecation of all book debts and receivables, present and future of the Company (to the
extent of 1 to 1.33 times of outstanding loan amount).

ii) Corporate guarantee of the Holding Company as at March 31, 2021 is . 69,651.89 (March 31, 2020: £ 82,223.03)
ili) Guarantee by third party as at March 31, 2021: Nil (March 31, 2020: 15% of initial value of term loans, capped at
35% due to amortization).

iv) First loss default guarantee (FLDG) in the form of fixed deposits as at March 31, 2021 is ¥ 1,451.00 (March 31,
2020; € 4,422.32)

v) First loss default guarantee (FLDG) in the form of security deposits as at March 21, 2021 is ® 125.00 (March 31,
2020: T 250.00)

vi) Overdraft and cash credit availed from banks secured by pledge fixed deposits as at March 31, 2021 is %6,231.62
{March 31, 2020: % 3,587.97)

vii) First loss default guarantee (FLDG) in the form of fixed deposits for securitisation transactions as at March
31,2021 is % 4,348.62 (March 31, 2020: £ 3,264.26)

Terms of Repayment - Term Loans & working capital demand loans as at March 31, 2021

Original Maturity / Repayment frequency | ____ Monthly/Quarterly repayment Yotal
Rate of interest 9%-12% | 12%-15% 15%6-16%
Due within 1 year
No. of instalments 74 297 88 459
Amount 12,800.47 26,187.25 2,574.46 41,562.18
Due 1to 2 years
No. of instalments 27 115 51 193
Amount 3,016.67 16,608.32 1,378.95 21,00394
Due 2 to 3 years
MNo. of instalments 11 27 . 38
Amount 675.33 3,725.17 - 4,400.50
|Interest accrued and impact of EIR 127.20

/fﬁﬂ-‘s o\ Total 16,492.47 46,520.74 3,953.41 67,093,82
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Terms of Repayment - Term Loans & working capital demand loans as at March 31, 2020
Original Maturity / Repayment frequency | Maonthly/Quarterly repayment Total
Rate of interest | 9%-12% 12%-15%
Due within 1 year
Mo. of instalments 139 641 780
Amount 14,271.15 31,344.46 45,615.61
Due 1 to 2 years
No. of instalments 40 388 428
Armount 3,681.39 19,207.66 22,889.05
Due 2 to 3 years
Mo. of instalments 3 152 155
Amount 208.33 10,529.86 10,738.19
! Due 3 to 4 years
No. of instalments - 33 33
Armount - 1,951.39 1,951.39
Interest accrued and impact of EIR 304.93
Total 18,160.87 63,033.37 81,499.17
16 Subordinated Debt
: | Asat31March| Asat31March
Casir N 2021 | 2020
(A) At amortised cost
(i) Unsecured
Term loans
from banks 2,529.12 2,528.44
Total 2,529.12 2,528.44
Terms of Repayment - Subordinated Debt as at March 31, 2021
Original Maturity / Repayment frequency L Bullet g Total.
Rate of interest repayment e
Due 3 to 4 years 12%-15%
No. of instalments 1.00 1.00
Amount 1,000.00 1,000.00
Due 4 to 5 years
No. of instalments 1.00 1.00
Amount 1,500.00 1,500.00
Interest accrued and impact of EIR 29,12
Total 2,500.00 2,529.12
Terms of Repayment - Subordinated Debt as at March 31, 2020
Original Maturity / Repayment frequency | . Bullet : FEaH Total
Rate of interest _repayment |
u 5 rs 12%-15%
MNo. of instalments 1.00 1.00
Amount 1,000.00 1,000.00
Due Above 5 years
No. of instalments 1.00 1.00
Amount 1,500.00 1,500.00
Interest accrued and impact of EIR 28.44
LT P Total 2,500.00 2,528.44 _ .
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Shares held by holding / ultimate holding company and / or their subsidiaries / associates
Cut of equity shares issued by the Company, shares held by its holding company i.e. Lendingkart Technologies
Private Limited, are as below:

As at 31 March | s at 31 March
Mo. of shares held 4,41,87,931 4,41,87,931
% of share holding 100% 100%

'Flr_tlg.llafil_:s:g e e

Details of each Shareholder holding more than 5% shares and the number of share held
Holding company i.e. Lendingkart Technologies Private Limited has 100% shares of the Company.

ke, g =T e ¢l at31 1| As at 31 March
Farticulars . &ai’hM’ﬁh Mﬁtﬂm
2021 2020
Mo, of shares held 4,41,87,931 ,41,87,931
% of share holding 100% 100%

As per the records of the Company, including its register of shareholders / members and other declarations
received from shareholders regarding beneficial interest, the above shareholding represents both legal and
beneficial ownerships of shares,

22 Other equity

Particutars. Ma_t'?rl Ham' ""-'g.‘.“m-' Mt

2021 2020

Securities Premium
Balance at the beginning of the year 67,252.72 46,799 81
Add: Premium on issue of Equity Shares . 20,479.80
(Less): Expenses on issue of shares (5.88) (26.89)

Balance at the end of the year 67,246.84 67,252.72
Surplus in the statement of profit and loss
Balance at the beginning of the year (665.06) (3.041.11)
Add: Profit for the year 1,879.99 2,965.30

GAAP Adjustments (P/L)

Less: item of other comprehensive income
Remeasurement gains / (losses) on defined benefit plan (net of tax) {48.05) 1.81
Less : Transferrcd to Statutory Reserve ufs section 45-1C of Reserve Bank of

India Act, 1934 ire00) b
Balance at the end of the year 790.88 (665.06)

Other Comprehensive Income

Balance at the beginning of the year (0.33) 3.48

Remeasurement gains / (losses) on defined benefit plan (net of tax) 48,05 {3.81)
Balance at the end of the year 47.72 (0.33)

Statutory Reserve u/s section 45-IC of Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934

Balance at the baginning of the year 1,281,14 GBE.08

Add : Amount transferred during the year 376.00 593.06
Balance at the end of the year 1,657.14 1,281.14

Total of ather equity £69,742.58 67,868.47
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23

24

25

26

27

28

Interest Income

[ rortheyearended |
i A Bl e b o P e Ll
On financial assets measured at Amortised Cost

Interest on term loans 46,214.43 42,499.50
Guarantee revenue from colending 663.21 122.34
Interest on fixed deposits with banks 918.11 1,380.87
Other charges 233.85 242.06
Qther interest income 57.18 23.08
Total 48,086.78 44,267.85

Gain on assignment of loans

Gain on assignment of loans for the year ended March 31, 2021 is % 278,25 (March 31, 2020 : % 1,941.16) and
loss on modification of leans is % 13,51 (March 31, 2020; ® 219.30) which is presented as net in the Statement

of Profit and Loss.

Other Income

Particulacy Tl 31 March 2021
Commission Income from Insurance 229.96 331.21
Gain on derecognition of Asset 166.60 -
Unwinding discount of security deposit 102.85 44,92
Other Income 194.17 64.43
Total 693.58 440.56
Finance Costs
SR i For the year ended | For the year ended
: : 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
On Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost
On debt securities 6,376.85 5,302.32
On borrowings (other than debt securities) 10,379.23 11,466.65
On commercial papers 2.35 180.37
On lease obligation IB5. 79 307.03
Others 353.03 78.05
On Financial liabilities measured at fair value
On debt securities 750.68 382.00
Total 18,247.93 17,716.50
Fees and commission expenses
: For the year ended | Fo
e 31 March 2021
Commission and Brokerage 1,237.71 72980
Total 1,237.71 729.80
Impairment on financial instruments at amortised cost
paticwiars | Fortheyearended | For theyear ended
e ‘31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Loans
Additional cowid provisions* 5,783.58 1,441.44
Other provisions 2,390.79 706.71
Other financial assets 648.27 24.54
Write offs 7,945.88 9. 77554
Total 17,768.52 11,948.23

* Additional covid provisions consist of provisions carried on restructured portfolio and management overlay

on other than restructured portfolio.
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23  Employee Benefit Expenses

o For the ! vear ende.&
Particulars 31 March 2021
Salaries and wages 3,197.10 4,459,599
Contribution to provident and other funds 111.59 152.65%
Reimbursement of ESOP expenses 37.44 £8.82
Leave benelit expense 86.36 17.20
Gratuity 81.44 72.06
Stafl weifare cxpenses 124,65 183.05
Total 3,638.58 4,943.77
30 Depreciation and amortisation expenses
Particulars. fsm:rglﬂnzh?d. S
Depreciation and amortisation expenses 684.00 629.99
Total 684.00 629,99
31 Other Expenses
Pa r"ilculars ‘For the year er;del;f _._-!:urmzfﬁfnn;ted
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Power and fugl 55.75 7847
Rent 48.99 47.03
Repairs and maintenance 32.66 4686
Insurance 19.87 17.58
Telephone and communication expense 139.55 171.25
Franking and stamping expenses 66.50 515.84
Marketing and sales promotion expense 50.21 S7.00
Auditor's fees and expenses (Refer note 31.1 below) 36.89 30.90
Legal and Professional charges 637.18 1,211.01
Service charges of outsourced employeas 702.48 1,028.36
Guarantee fees 1,371.55 1,266.56
License fees 356,55 498.33
Business support services 82.21 218.20
Printing and stationery 8.34 10.51
Travelling expenses 14.45 92.74
Bank charges 8261 118.08
Courier expenses 61.12 58.10
Software license fees 745.48 710.60
Rates & taxes 32.55 19.54
Security expenses 15.16 12.73
Loss on sale of fixed assets (net) 3.02 in
Director sitting fees 6.54 2.64
Housekeeping expenses 25.49 16,17
CSR Expenditure 34.45 .
Miscellaneous expenses 22.96 36.11
Total 4,652.56 6,267.71

31.1 Auditer's Remuneration

Audit fee

Tax audit fee

In other capacity :
Certification services
Reimbursement of expenses

Total
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32 Tax expense

Bi\ruailq'rs*: o e o At
Current tax expense
Current tax for the year 3,128.07 1,407.18
Prior period Tax adjustments - 3.28
1,128.07 1,410.46
Deferred taxes
Change in deferred tax assets 2,424.11 562.63
Change in deferred tax lHabilities (79.90) {377.36)
Met deferred tax expense / (income) (2,144.21) (185.27)
Total income tax expense 983.86 1,225.19
32.1 Taxreconciliation
it s | B - B
sl | simarchzoza |
Profit before income tax expense 2,815.80
Effective Tax Hate 25.17%
Tax at statutory income tax rate 708.68 1,221.37
Tax effect of n hich are not deductibl
lating taxable incom
Expenses disallowed 44.86 0.53
Impact of change in tax rate 24651
Deferred tax expense on account of OC] {16.19) +
Prior period adjustments 2 3.28
Income tax expense 983.86 1,225.18

The Government of India, on 20 September 2019, vide the Taxation Laws (Amendment) Ordinance 2019 [the
Ordinance), inserted a new Section 115BAA in the Income-tax Act, 1961, which pravides an option for paying
income-tax at reduced rates under the new regime. During the year ended March 31, 2021, the Company has
opted for paying income-tax at reduced rates and accordingly, the opening deferred tax asset (net) has been
measured at the lower rate with a one time corresponding charge of % 246.51 lakhs to the Statement of Profit
and Loss.
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32.2 Deferred tax movement related to the following:

March 31, 2020 to March 31, 2021

 Deferred tax assets (net)

Deferred tax asset on account of:
Provision for expenses allowed for lax purposes on

payment basis under Section 438 of Incame tax Act, 112,71 (18.68) 16.19 110.21

1961

Expected credit loss 3,787.61 [2,037.43) - 1,750.18

Unamortised processing fee 318.42 (97.41) - 221.01

Deferred tax on account of lnd AS 116 50.24 [26.34) . 23.90

Deferred tax on account of Guarantee fees 247.85 78.03 - 325.88

Defer_red tax n_n account of unwinding discount of| . 18.45 i 5144

Security Deposit

Difference  between  tax  depreciation  and

depreciation charged for the financial reporting iy (8.99) . 27.84

Interest on market linked debentures 285.10 {173.84) - 111.26

MAT credit entitlement - 42,10 . 42.10
4,871.75 {2,224.12) 16.19 2,663.82

Deferred tax lability on account of:

On account of securitisation and direct assignment 64370 A v e

Unamaortised borrowing cost 201.37 (41.41) 5 242.78

885.07 79.90 - 805.17
Deferred tax charge/(credit) for the year 3,986.68 (2,144.22) 16.19 1,858.65

33 Earning Per Share

For the year
Particulars ' gn\ﬂi ;
A L 31 March 2020
(A} Met profit/{loss) after tax for the year 2,969.09
(8) Weighted average numher of equity shares for basic earnings per 4,41.87.931 41871188
share
{C] Weighted average number of equity shares for diluted earnings per 4,41,87,931 4,18,71,188
share
Basic earning per share in % (A/B) 4.15 7.09
Diluted earning per share in 2 [A/C) 4,15 7.09
[Mominal value of shares % 10 each (Previous Year : ¥ 10)]
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34. Segment Information

The Company operates in a single reportable segment i.e. financing, since the nature of the loans are exposed to
similar risk and return profiles. No revenue from transactions with a single external customer or counterparty
amounted to 10% or more of the Company’s total revenue in year ended March 31, 2021 and March 31, 2020. The
Company operates in a single geographical segment i.e. domestic, and accordingly, there are no separate reportable
segments as per Ind AS 108 dealing with operating segments.

35. Related party transactions

Related party disclosures as required under Indian Accounting standard 24, " Related party disclosure” are given
below.

(a) Name of Related parties with whom the Company had transactions

Nature of Relationship | mNameofRelated Parties
Holding company Lendingkart Technologies Private Limited
Entity having significant influence in Holding company Fullerton Financial Private Limited

(b) MName of Key Managerial Persons

I Nature of Relationship ____ Name of Related Parties
Independent director Mr. Gaurav Mittal
Independent director Mr. Thallapaka Venakateswara Rao
independent director (Appointed w.e.f March 27, 2021) | Mrs. Uma Subramaniam

(e} Transactions during the year with related parties

1 Lendingkart Technologies Private Limited
Unsecured inter-corporate loan taken - 1,000.00
Unsecured inter-caorporate lpan repaid - 1,000.00
Interest paid on inter-corporate loans - 1.54
Issue of equity share capital (including share premium
: - 21,000.00
on Issue of equity shares) {refer note 1 below)
License fee paid for use of software (Excludes 50%
reversal of goods and services tax input credit) (refer 327.11 457.18
note 2 below)
Business sup pulrt cha rges paid (E xfﬂuﬂes 50% reversal of 75.42 200.18
goods and services tax input credit)
Reimbursement of ESOP expenses (Excludes 50%
34,35 53.96
reversal of goods and services tax input cradit)
2 Mr. Gaurav Mittal
Director sitting fee (Excludes 50% reversal of goods and 135 0.90
services tax input credit) ' '
3 Mr. Thallapaka Venakateswara Rao
Director sitting fee (Excludes 50% reversal of goods and 475 1.50
services tax input credit) : ;
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36.

ar.

i Lendingkart Technologies Private Limited (71.98} (66.02)
2 Mr. Gaurav Mittal {0.09) -

(e} Guarantees given by holding company®

w e Ll el

Loans borrowed and outstanding from financial
1 institutions and Banks guaranteed by the Holding 69,651.89 82,223,023
Company [including CC facility)

Non-Convertible debentures issued and outstanding to
2 financial Institutions, banks and other company 44.823.77 38,136.36
guaranteed by the Holding Company

* In respect of Guarantee fees- no payment is required to be made to Holding Company, as allowed under
ITFG issue 2 bulletin 13, no guarantee commission is recognised in books of the company

* Total sanction amount of Loans borrowed from financial institutions and banks against which guarantee is given
by holding company is % 1,61,550.00 and sanction amount of Nen-Convertible debentures Issued to financial
institutions, banks and other company is % 63,750.00

Note 1: During the year ended March 31, 2020, the company issued 52,02,011 equity shares of % 10 each fully paid-
up &t a premium of T 393,69 per share to Holding Company. For detailed terms of the equity shares, please refer note
21 to the Financlal Statements.

Note 2: The Company has entered into License Agreement with Holding Company dated June 19, 2015 for a term of
5 years, which was further renewed on September 03, 2020 for a term of 5 years, for use of the licensed software to
digitally lend money to its customers,

The services provided by the Holding Company to the Company are of a specialised nature and hence difficult to
benchmark with other external sources. The Company has engaged the services of an expert 1o assess the arm's
length price for this inter-company transaction.

Employee stock option plans

The Holding Company has Employee Stock Option Plans (“ESOP") scheme in force. As per the ESOP scheme, Holding
Company has granted ESOP options to acquire its equity shares that would vest in a graded manner to Company's
employees. Based on the group policy/ arrangement, Holding Company has cross charged the fair value of such ESOP,
The Company has recognised the same under the employee cost amounting to % 37.44 for the year ended March 31,
2021 (March 31, 2020: % 58.82).

Leases

Where the company is lesses:
Tha Company's significant leasing arrangements are In respect of operating leases for premises which are renewable
on mutual consent at agreed terms, These |eases have an average life of between one and nine years. Lease rentals
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i. 5etout below are the carrying amount of right-of-use assets recognized and movement during the year:

Particulars =~ | ‘Amount.
Balance as at April 01, 2019 1,672.67
Additions 1,908.21
Closure =
Depreciation expense 367.24
Balance as at March 31, 2020 3,213.65
Additions 298.86
Closure 709,69
Depreciation expense 463.75
Balance as at March 31, 2021 2,339.07

ii. Setout are the carrying amount of lease liabilities and movement during the year:

3s.

Particulars | 31 March 2021 | 31 March 2020 |
Opening Balance 3,336.70 1,685.52
Additions 163.64 1,803.59
Accretion of interest 385.79 307.03
Closure [741.06) -
Payments [605.02) {459.43)
Closing Balance - 2,540.05 3,336.70

fii. The expense relating 10 payments not included in the measurement of the lease liability is as follows:

Particulars

31 March 2021

31 March 2020

Short-term |eases

48.99

47.03

iv. The undiscounted maturity analysis of lease liabilities at March 31, 2021 is as follows:

Lease Liahility 31 March 2021 | 31 March 2020
Mot later than one year 541.68 681.08
Later than one year and not later than five years 2,134.76 3.309.99
Later than five years 1,263.07 1,407.48
Total undiscounted lease liabilities 3,9359.51 5,398.55

v. The effective interest rate of lease liabilities for the year ended March 31, 2021 is 13.95% (March 21, 2020

13.24%).

vi. The following are the amount recognized in statemen

t of profit or loss.

Particulars - 31 March 2021 | 31 March 2020
Depreciation expense right of use of assets 463.75 367.24
Interest expense on lease liabilities 385.79 307.03
Expense relating to short term leases (included in other expenses) 48.99 47.03
Loss/ (Gain) on derecognition of assets (166.60) -
Total Amount recognized in statement of profit and loss account 731.93 721.30

Expenditure in foreign currency (on accrual basis)

_ Particulars | 31 March 2021 | 31 March 2020
Professional Fees i 117.27 80.77
Software Expenses | 1.53 17.15

Total | 118.80 97.92
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39, Contingent liability and Commitments
a) Contingent Liability
____Description of the contingent liability | 31March 2021 | 31 March 2020
Credit enhancements provided by the company towards securitisation
(including corporate guarantee, cash collateral and loan assets 9,108.00 7.282.41
retained as Minimum retention Requirement {MRR)
Corporate guarantee in case of co-lending transactions 10,533.59 6,283.15
b) Capital and other commitments
| Description of the capital and other commitments 31 March 2021 | 31 March 2020
Loan sanctioned not yet disbursed* 3,130.30 -
A S Software Services Private Limited (Omnifin Software) (Excludes 50%
: 13.60 98.55
reversal of goods and service tax input credit)
* During the previous year ended March 31, 2020, the Company has sanctioned loans amounting to % 90.50 but
not disbursed as on March 31, 2020, due to expiry of agreements during lockdown declared by Government of
India,
40. Retirement benefit plans
A. Defined benefit obligation

Particulars 31 March 2021 | 31 March 2020
Discount rate (per annum) 6.50% 6.60%
Rate of salary increase 12.00% 12.00%
Rate of employee turnover (per annum)

Age band

25 & Below 18.00% 18.00%

251ta 35 15.00% 15.00%

3510 45 12.00% 12.00%

45 to 55 9.00% 9.00%

55 & Above 6.00% 6.00%

ii. Movement in defined benefit obligation:
; Particulars_ 31 March 2021 | 31 March 2020 |
Defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the year 159.27 82.50
Interest on defined benefit obligation 10.39 6.17
Current service cost 71.05 65.89
Benefits pald (19.18) (0.66)
Remeasurements due to :
Actuarial loss/(gain) arising from change in demographic assumptions - (0.03)
Actuarial loss/(gain) arising from change in financial assumptions [ 1.32 11.71
Actuarial loss/(gain) arising on account of experience cha nges (65.56) |

Present Value of obligation at the end of the year

Contribution to Gratuity fund:

The gratuity plan is governed by the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. Under the Gratuity Act, an employee who has
campleted five years of service is entitled to specific benefits. The level of benefits provided depends on the member’s

length of service, managerial grade and salary at retiremant age,

In accordance with Indian Accounting Standard 19, actuarial valuation was done in respect of the aforesaid defined

benefit plan of gratuity based on the following assumptions:

Key actuarial assumptions:
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Assets and liabilities recognised in the balance sheet:

= Particulars - | 31 March 2021 | 31 March 2020
Present value of the defined benefit obiligation at the end of the year 157.29 159.27
Fair Value of Plan Assets at the end of the year -
Funded Status {Surplus/ (Deficit) - -
Net liability recognised in the balance sheet 157.29 159.27
iv.  Expenses recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss:
. Particulars 31 March 2021 | 31 March 2020
Current Service Cost 71.05 65,89
Interest cost 10.39 6.17
Net gratuity cost recognised in the current year 81.44 72.06
v. Expensesrecognised in the statement of Other comprehensive income (0OCI):
| ' Particulars T simarch2021 | 31 March 2020
i Actuarial loss / (gain) on post-employment benefit abligatiol (64.24) 5.37
[ Total remeasurement cost / (credit) for the year recognised in OCI (64.24) 5.37
vi. Reconciliation of net asset/(liability) recognised:
: Particulars 31 March 2021 | 31 March 2020
Net defined benefit liability/{asset) as at the beginning of the year 159,27 £2.50
Expense charged to Statement of Profit and Loss 81.44 72.06
{Benefit paid directly by the employer) (19.18) (0.66)
Amount recagnised in other comprehensive income (64.24) 5.37
Net Liability/(Asset) Recognized in the Balance Sheet 157.29 159.27
vii. Sensitivity analysis:
Particulars e 31 March 2021 | 31 March 2020
Impact of increase in 0.5% on rate of discounting 150.86 152.59
Impact of decrease in 0.5% on rate of discounting 164.19 166.44
Impact of increase in 0.5% on rate of salary increase 161.57 163.61
Impact of decrease in 0.5% on rate of salary increase 152.99 154,92
Impact of increase in 10% on rate of employee turnover 152.70 153.76
Impact of decrease in 10% on rate of employee turnover 161,89 164.80
viil.  Maturity analysis of projected benefit obligation:
Particulars | 31 March 2021 | 31 March 2020
Expected benefits for year 1 6.98 3.75
Expected benefits for year 2 10.42 9.66
Expected benefits for yvear 3 12.31 13.08
Expected benefits for year 4 16.67 15.20
Expected benefits for vear 5 16.88 18.62
,f’ff«b\B c*:” 3 3 Expected benefits for vears 6 to 10 77.18 81.80
e O
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.

41.

az.

43.

aa,

45.

The Experience adjustment on plan assets:

_ Particulars. 31 March | 31March | 31 March
= b AN - 2021 2019 Eed
Defined benefit obligation 157.29 82.50 44.72 | 21.38
Plan assets . - - = -
Surplus/ (deficit) (157.29) (159.27) (82.50) [44.72) (21.38)
Experience adjustment of plan _ 4 A ’
#5585
1 i e (65.56) (6.31) (5.26) (10.45) 8.52
| liabilities i
Compensated absences:
Maturity Profile
: Particulacs | 31March2021 | 31 WMa
Present value of unfunded obligations 226.23
Expense recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss 86.36
Discount rate (p.a.) 6.50%
Salary escalation rate (p.a) 12.00%

Provident Fund:

The Company contributes in Provident Fund towards employees which is the defined contribution plan for qualifying
employees. Under this Scheme, the Company is required to contribute specified percentage of the payroll cost to fund
the benefits, The Company recognised % 108.90 (March 31, 2020 % 145.88) for provident fund contributions in the
Statement of profit and loss,

The Indian Parliament has approved the Code on Social Security, 2020 which subsumes the Provident Fund and the
Gratuity Act and rules thereunder. The Ministry of Labour and Employment has also released draft rules thereunder
on Neovember 13, 2020 and has invited suggestions from stakeholders which are under active consideration by the
Ministry. The Company will evaluate the rules, assess the impact, if any and account for the same once the rules are
notified and become effective.

Corporate Social Responsibility Expenses

As per Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company is under obligation to Incur % 34.45 (Previous year %
Nil), being 2% of the average net profit during the three immediately preceding financial years, calculated in the
manner as stated in the Act towards Corporate Social Responsibility through contribution to fund prescribed in
Sthedule VIl of the Companies Act, 2013 and has incurred % 0.85 in current year, and the remaining amount is
transferred into Unspent Corporate Social Responsibility Account within 30 days of completion of financial year,

Based on the information available with the Company, there are no micro, small and medium enterprises to whom
the Company has paid interest or any interest payable on outstanding {under the provisions of Section 16 of Micro,
Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006) during the year ended March 21, 2021,

The Company does not have any outstanding loans against gold jewellery as at March 31, 2021 (March 31, 2020: Nil).

Capital:

The Company actively manages its capital base to cover risks inherent to its business and meet the capital adequacy
requirement of RBI. The adequacy of the Company's capital is monitored using, amaeng other measures, the
regulations issued by RBI.
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i. Capital management

Objective:

The Company's abjective s to maintain appropriate levels of capital to support its business strategy taking into account
the regulatory, economic and commercial environment. The Company aims to maintain a strong capital base to
support the risks inherent to its business and growth strategies. The Company endeavours to maintain a higher capital
base than the mandated regulatory capital at all times,

Planning:

The Company’s assessment of capital requirement is aligned to its planned growth which forms part of an annual
operating plan which is approved by the Board and also a long-range strategy, These growth plans are aligned ta
assessment of risks= which include credit, liquidity and interest rate.

The management monitors its capital to risk-weighted assets ratio (CRAR) on a monthly basis and the same is also
monitored in Assets Liability Management Committee (ALCO).

The Company endeavours to maintain its CRAR higher than the mandated regulatory norm. Accardingly, increase in
capital is planned well in advance to ensure adequate funding for its growth.

ii. Regulatory capital

Particulars 31 March 2021 | 31 March 2020
Tier | capital 67,847.88 68,381.90
Tier Il capital 8,525.29 4,823.83
Total capital 76,373.17 73,205.73
Risk weighted assets (RWA) 1,97,127.66 2,02,276.70
Tier | CRAR 34,42% 33.81%
Tier Il CRAR 4,32% | 2.38%
CRAR 38.74% | 36.19%

aB, Transfers of assets:
i. Transferred of financial assets that are not derecognised in their entirety
Securitisation

The company has Securitised certain loans, however the company has not transferred substantially all risks and
rewards, hence these assets have not been de-recognised in its entirety.

Particulars | 31March2021 | 31 March 2020
Carrying amount of transferred assets measured at
amartised cost (including loans placed as collateral) 2hiE5:H =9IES
Carrying amount of associated liabilities (Debt securities -
measured at amortised cost) s e
Fair value of assets 26,638.84 33,915.58
Fair value of associated liahilities 21,127.96 22,660.56
Net pasition at Fair Value 5,510.88 11,255.02

ii. Transferred of financial assets that are derecognised in their entirety

The Company has not transferred any assets that are derecognised in their entirety where the Company continues to
have continuing invalvement,
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48,

49.

Fair values:

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction in
the principal {or most advantageous) market at the measurement date under current market conditions (i.e., an exit
price), regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using a valuation technigue.

In order to show how fair values have been derived, financial instruments are classified based on a hierarchy of
valuation technigues.

Valuation framework

The Company’s valuation framework includes:

* Benchmarking prices against observable market prices or other independent sources;

* Development and validation of fair valuation models using model logic, inputs, outputs and adjustments.
These models are subject to approvals by various functions including risk, treasury and finance functions, Finance
function is responsible for establishing procedures, governing valuation and ensuring fair values are in compliance
with accounting standards.

Valuation methodologies adopted

+  Fair values of linancial assets and financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost except for market linked
debentures and cash and bank balances which are measured at fair value through profit and loss,

*  Fair value of Market linked debentures is derived from independent valuer, The valuation is done based on
discounted cashflow method. The option portion is projected using Monte Carlo simulations and Geometric
Brownian Motion is used to project the Index levels into the future. The Index levels are projected based on
certain assumptions and the value of debenture is then arrived at by discounting the respective cashflows,

« The Company has determined that the carrying values of expenses payables, bank overdrafts and other
current liabilities are a reasonable approximation of their fair value and hence their carrying value are deemed
to be fair value.

Fair value hierarchy:

The Company determines fair values of its financial instruments according to the following hierarchy:

Level 1: valuation based on quoted market price: finaneial instruments with quoted prices for identical instruments in
active markets that the Company can access at the measurement date.

Level 2: valuation based on using observable inputs: financial instruments with quoted prices for similar instruments
in active markets or quoted prices for identical or similar instruments in inactive markets and financial instruments
valued using models where all significant inputs are observable.

Level 3: valuation technigue with significant unobservable inputs: = financial instruments valued using valuation

techniques where one or more significant inputs are unohservable. This is the case for contingent consideration and
indemnification assets,

Financial instruments by category

UL 131 Marc

- Financial instruments by categary

_ Carrying value
Financial assets:
Cash and cash equivalent 28,786.04 - 5,049.52
Other bank balances 14,096.80 - 11,296.78 .
Loans 1,93,.869.25 - 2,12,688.51 -
Other financial assets 7,667.62 - 2,868.74 -

Total financial assets 2,44,419.71 2,31,903.54 |
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50.

P - , 31 March 2021 31 March 2020

_Financial instruments by category : Carrying value | Fairvalue | Carryingvalue | Fair value
Financial liabilities:
Debt Securities 58,676.97 8,873.62 39,284.43 5,122.94
Borrowings (other than debt securities) 93,092.62 - 1,10,561.24 -
Subordinated Debt 2,529.12 - 2,528.44 -
Other financial liabilities 11,112.93 - 7,374.86 -
Total financial liabilities 1,65,411.64 8,873.62 1,59,748.96 5,122.94

Fair value of financial instruments measured at amortised cost:

Particulars Level of hierarchy | 31 March 2021 | 31 March 2020
Financial assets:
Cash and cash equivalent Level 1 28,786.04 5,049.52
Other bank balances Level 1 14,096.80 11,296.78
Loans Level 3 1,93,869.25 2,12,688.51
Other financial assets Level 3 7,667.62 2,868.74
| [E‘_.‘_ﬂp! f_in_a_ncial assets 2,44,419.71 2,31,903.54
Financial liabilities:
Debt Securities Level 3 58,676.97 39,284.43
Borrowings (other than debt securities) Level 3 93,092.62 1,10,561.24
Subordinated Debt Level 3 2,529.12 2,528.44
Other financial liabilities Level 3 11,112.93 7,374.86
Total financial liabilities 1,65,411.64 | 1,59,748.96

Fair value of financial instruments designated at FUTPL:

! Particulars | Level of hierarchy | 31 March 2021 | 31 March 2020 |
Financial liabilities:
Debt Securities Level 2 8,873.62 5,122.94

Financial risk management:

The Company is exposed to certain financial risks namely credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk i.e. interest risk and
foreign currency risk, The Company’s primary focus is to achieve better predictability of financial markets and minimize
potential adverse effects on its financial performance by effectively managing the risks on its financial assets and
liabilities.

The Principal objective in Company 's risk management processes is to measure and monitor the various risks
associated with the Company and to follow policies and procedures to address such risks. The Company's risk
management framewark is driven by its Board and its subcommittees including the Audit Committee, the Asset
Liability Management Committee and the Risk Management Committee. The Company gives due importance to
prudent lending practices and have implemented suitable measures for risk mitigation, which include verification of
credit history from credit information bureaus, personal verification of a customer’s business and residence, technical
and legal verifications. For credit risk refer note 50 (C).

Liguidity Risk:

The company’s Board of Directors has overall responsibility of management of liquidity risk. The Board decides the

strategic policies and procedures of the Company to manage liquidity risk in accordance with approved risk tolerance
[imits
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, The Company continuously monitors liquidity in the market; and as a part of its ALCO strategy, the Company maintains
a liquidity buffer managed by an active investment desk to reduce this risk.

The Company alsa has a Risk Oversight Committee reporting to the Board and responsible for evaluating overall risks
faced by the Company including liquidity risk.

The Company maintains a judicious mix of borrowings from banks, money markets and public and other deposits. The
Company continues to diversify its sources of borrowings with an emphasis on longer tenor borrowings. This strategy
of balancing varied sources of funds and long tenor borrowings has helped the Company to maintain a healthy asset
liability position.

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the undiscounted cash flows of the Company's financial assets
and liabilities:

31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Financial assets T T  After T e WA -2
WWithind yeary Be sy el W.,..E“elm%_;“ﬁ,,, s “tiygars +
Cash and cash equivalents 28,786.04 . 5,049.52 =
Bonk sisncer other fhan sash snd.cosh 12,902.87 1,193.93 8,620.43 2,676.35
equivalents
Loans 1,26,914.82 1,53.015.83 1,42,804.67 1,37,707.36
Other financial assets 4,104.78 3,562.84 1,687.61 1,171.13
Total 1,72,708.51 1,57,772.60 1,58,172.23 1,41,554.84
ol y L atmMmarch2021 [ 31 March2i b 2k Ty
Financial liabillties A ESES TR G [, < e PR .
'l . A _.H-.'-.«Imm 1year 1 year - Sl o
Debt Securities 35,633.77 43,040.19 19,920.08 32,171.39
Borrowings (other than debt securities) 52,398.77 27,551.79 59,842 82 40,091.12
Subordinated Debt 358.50 3,555.47 358.86 3913497
Securitisation liabilities 16,855.28 4,272.68 16,202.82 6,457.74
Other financial liabilities 4,331.55 4,916.54 3,809.41 4,717.47
Total 1,09,577.87 83,336.67 1,00,134.00 87,351.68

The table below shows an analysis of assets and liabilities analysed [maturity analysis) according to when they are
to be recovered or settled.

: -- a0 _Withinl |  After s AV
‘As at March 31,2021 et T e Tmi &
Assets
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 28,786.04 - 28,786.04
Bank balances ather than cash and cash equivalents 12,902.88 1,193.92 14,096.80
Loans 79,443 .40 1,14,425.85 1,93,869.25
Other financial assels 4,104,79 3,562.83 7.667.62
Non-financial assets
Current tax assets (Net) - 24,55 24,55
Deferred tax asset [Met) - 3,986.68 3,986.68
Property, plant and equipment - 160.55 160.55
Other Intangible assets - 67.12 67.12
Intangible assets under development . 14541 145.41
Right-of-use assets - 2,338.07 2,339.07
Other non-Financial assets 422.84 32.43 455.27
1,25,659.95 1,25,933.4@} 2,51,598.36
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. AsatMarchdn20 S| el
Liabilities
Financial liabilities
Debt Securities 30,898.20 36,652.39 67,550.59
Borrowings (Other than debt securities) 63,472.45 29,620.16 53,092.62
Subordinated Debt 30.45 2,498.67 2,529.12
Other financial liabilities 521642 5,896.51 11,112.93
Non Financial liabilities
Current tax liabilities (net) 1,189.18 - 1,189.18
Provisions 29.21 354.31 38352
Other non financial liabilities 254.75 1,324.28 | 1,579.03
Total liabilities 1,01,090.67 76,346.32 | 1,77,436.99 |
= ok —iTe==22 ] = e
Asat March 31,2020 . Total

Assets

] Financial assets

| Cash and cash equivalents 5,049.52 - | 5,0458.52

.r Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 8,620.43 2.676.35 ! 11,296.78
Loans 99,730.34 1,12,958.17 2,12.688.51
Other financial aszets 1,696.01 1,172.73 ’ 2,868.74 |
Mon-financial assets |
Current tax assets (net) - 162.08 162.08 |
Deferred tax asset (Net) - 1,858.65 1,858.65
Froperty, plant and equipment - 307.92 307.92
Other Intangible assets * 119.58 119.58
Intangible assets under development - 45.45 4545
Right-of-use assets - 3,213.65 3,213.65

| Other non-Financial assets 533.46 55.04 588.50
Total assets 1,15,629.75 1,22,569.62 2,38,199.37
Liabilities
Financial liabilities |
Debt Securities 15,357.79 29,049.58 44,.407.37
Borrowings (Other than debt securities) 68,596.58 41,964.65 1,10,561.24
Subordinated Debt 30,10 2,498.34 2,528.44
Other financial liakilities 3,8B01.36 3,573.50 7,374.86 |
Non Financial liabilities
Current tax liabilities (net) - & -
Provisions 27.09 351.39 378.48
Other non financial liabilities £61.75 - 661.75
Total liabilities 88 474.68 77,437.45 1,65,912.13

Market Risk:

Market risk is the risk that the falr value of future cash flow of financial instruments will fluctuate due to cha nges in
the market variables such as interest rates, foreign exchange rates and equity prices. The Company do not have any

exposure to equity price risk,
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{il Foreign currency risk
Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of
changes in foreign currency rates. The Company's exposure to the risk of changes in foreign exchange rates relates
primary to certain vendors in trade payables.

Foreign currency exposure risk
The Company's exposure for foreign currency risk at the end of reporting period are as follows:

' partictars  ___31March2021 | 31March2020
4 P M ~ usD | Zinlakhs |  USD | ZTinlakhs
Expenses payable 1,43,646.00 105.93 : -
Foreign currency sensitivity
s : h 1. e trl
Foreign current rate Impact on peofithetore tax

31 March 2021 | 31 March 2020

Foreign currency exposure risk
Increase by 5% 5.30 -
Decrease by 5% (5.30) .

[il} Interest rate risk

The Company is subject to interest rate risk, since the rates of loans and borrowing might fluctuate over the tenure
of instrument. Interest rates are highly sensitive to many factors beyond control, including the monetary policies
of the Reserve Bank of India, deregulation of the financial sector in India, domestic and international economic
and political conditions, inflation and other factors. In order to manage interest rate risk, the Company seek to
optimize borrowing profile between short-term and long-term loans. The liabilities are categorized into various
time buckets based on their maturities and Asset Liability Management Committee supervise an interest rate
sensitivity report periodically for assessment of interest rate risks,

Carrying value of borrowings:

Particulars _ |'31march 2021 | 31 March 2020

Debt Securities (variable) 8,873.62 9,500.00
Debt Securities (fixed) 58,676.97 34.907.37
Borrowings (other than debt securities) (variable) 24,489.69 42,076.05
Borrowings (other than debt securities) (fixed) 68,602.93 68,485.19
Subordinated debts (variable) | - -
Subordinated debts |fixed) 2,529.12 2.528.44
Total Borrowings 1,63,172.33 1,57.,497.04

Sensitivity analysis:
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates (all other
variables being constant) of the Company's Statement of profit and loss:

. oo St s a0 W mpaction profit before tax . |
Intere Rt S e R P TMarcts 2021 [134 Narch 26201
Borrowings, debt securities & subordinate debt
Increase by 50 basis points (166.82) 257.88)
Decrease by 50 basis points 166.82 257.88

C. Credit Risk:

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss arising out of 3 customer or counterparty failing to meet their repayment
obligations to the Company. The lending model focuses an SME Lending, The nature of the product is unsecureg

N
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Classification of financial assets under various stages

The Company classifies its financial assets in three stages havi ng the following characteristics:
+ Stage 1: unimpaired and without significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition on which a 12-
manth allowance for ECL is recognised.
* Stage 2: a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition on which a lifetime ECL is recognised.
*  Stage 3: objective evidence of impairment, and are therefore considered to be in default or otherwise credit
impaired on which a lifetime ECL is recognised.

Unless identified at an earlier stage, all financial assets are deemed to have suffered a significant increase in credit
risk when they are 30 days past due (DPD) and are accordingly transferred from stage 1 to stage 2. For stage 1 an ECL
allowance is calculated based on a 12 month Point in Time (PIT) probability welighted probability of default (PD). For
stage 2 and 2 assets a life time ECL is calculated based on a lifetime PD.

The Company has calculated ECL using three main companents: a probability of default (PD), a loss given default
(LGD] and the exposure at default (EAD) along with an adjustment considering farward macro-economic conditions.

Financial instruments other than loans, Interest receivable on assignment of loans and Receivable from co-lenders
were subjected to simplified ECL approach under Ind AS 109 'Financial instruments' and accordingly were not subject
to sensitivity of future economic conditions,

Below is the summary for the approach adopted by the Company for various components of ECL viz. PD, EAD and
LGD using empirical data where relevant:

*  Probability of Default (PD)
The Company’s operates with its internal rating models in which its customers are rate from "A” to “F" using
internal grades. The models Incorporate both qualitative and guantitative information and, in addition to
Information specific to the borrower, utilise supplemental external information that could affect the
borrower's behaviour. PDs are then adjusted for Ind AS 109 ECL calculations to incorporate forward looking
information and the Ind AS 109 Stage classification of the exposure.

PD is based on a internal rating model, days past due and various histarical, current and forward-looking
infarmation.

Stage 1: based on internal rating model

Stage 2: based on days past due

Stage 3: 100%

* Exposure at Default (EAD)
The exposure at default represents the outstanding and interest accrued of the financial instruments subject
to the impairment calculation.

*  Loss given Default (LGD)
LGD values are assessed based on key characteristics that are relevant to the estimation of future cash flows.
The applied data is based on historically collected loss data and involves a wider set of transaction
characteristics as well as borrower characteristics,

Further recent data and forward-looking economic scenarios are used in order 1o determine the Ind AS 109
LGD rate foi each group of financial instruments. When assessing forward-looking information, the
expectation is based on multiple scenarios. Examples of key inputs involve changes in payment status,
geographical location, industrial sector or other factors that are indicative of losses in the company.
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Analysis of changes in the gross carrying amount and correspending ECL allowances in relation to loans is as follows:

BT =

i Rl Lb __ .
.:'S’“ﬁ’! X

et | stagel | Swge2 | Swged |  Towl | Stgel
Opening balance of gross

o

Cormying anmount 2,07 B93.06 6,%238.04 4.793.37 2,19,624.47 1,31,103.53 3,208.55 1,766.67 1,36,075.75
Transters during the year
Transfers to Stage 1 136.34 {135.37) [na7) - 133.57 [132.:97} = ‘
Translers to Stage 2 |42,860.07) 42,865.71 [5.64] . {5,3945.83) 5,399 8% - -
Transfers 1o Stage 3 {7.179.66) (826.95) 8,006.61 - 13,914.53) (284.47) 4,199.00 ®

Changes to contractual cash
flows due to modifications
nt resulting in
derecognition

Changes in apening credit

3,424.10 10,857.42 936.67 1521819 602,13 146.92 = 749.05

:;;T::::;m li‘::mﬂﬂ:} (86,089.91) | (5,606.44) (898.98) [92,595.33!2 (82,326.26) | (4,849.60) 514165 | (82,034.21)
repayimeants)

Mew:  credit EADOSUTES |

during the year, net of | 7487572 461.61 307.00 75,744.33 | 1,67,694.05 3,453.78 3,461.59 | 1,74,609.42
répgayments

Amounts written off . - | (7.94588) [7,905.88) . - | [9,775.54) {9,775.54)

‘Closing balance of gross
Carrying amaunt

1,50,293.58 54,554.02 5,152.13 2,10,045.78 2,07, 893.06 6,93E.04 4,793.37 | 2,19,624.47

- i Ll ot L T T 2L
| Swge1 Cstger | swgez | Staged |
SUMIIG. R A A 271687 | 1,52951 | 2,689.58 6,935.96 3,155.42 664,49 993,15 ,813.05
allowange
Transfers during the vear |
Transfers 1o Stage 1 £6.15 125.62) | 10.53) 16.22 126.22) - -
Transfers to Stage 2 (G654, 54) 697,75 [3.11) L [155.17) 155.17 = 5
Transfers 1o Stage 3 {134.17) {2833.07) 417.24 L {1619, 83) 56.49 53.34 =,
Changesto contractual cash
| Hows due to modifications
gk resulting i 112.65% 1,738.15 28892 2,149.72 13.04 30.02 = 43.96
derecognition
| Changes in opening credi
EXDOSLNES (additional |
dichrament:  ReE . of (8.05) 507,28 | 766819 12,595.42 [1,952,03) | {55. 74} £.822.02 6,814.25
Fepaymentsh
| Mew credit  exposures
during. the wyear, net of 1,996.30 142.95 202.02 2,341.31 1,738.32 705.31 4,596.61 5,040.24
repayments
Amounts written off - - (7,545,88) (7,945.88) - - {9, 775.54) 19,775.54)
Closing balance of ECL
5 4,023.11 §,826.99 3.326.43 16,176.53 2,716.87 1,529.51 2,689.58 6,935.96
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The table below summarises the gross carrying values and the associated allowances for expected credit lass (ECL)
stage wise for loan portfolio:

As At March 31, 2021:

Particulars | stagel | Stage2 | Stage3 | Total
Gross carrying amount 1,50,299.58 | 54,554.02 5192.18 | 2,10,045.78
Allowance far ECL 4,023.11 8,826.99 3,326.43 16,176.53
ECL Coverage ratio i 2.68% 16.18% 64.07% 7.70%

As At March 31, 2020:

“Particulars | stage1 | stage2z | Stages | Total _
Gross carrying amount 2,07, 893.06 6,938.04 4,793.37 | 2,19,624.47
Allowance for ECL 2,716.87 1,416.53 2,802.56 6,935.96
ECL Coverage ratio 1.31% 20.42% 58.47% 3.16%

Measurement uncertainty and sensitivity analysis of ECL estimates:

Expected credit loss impairment loss allowances recognised in the financial statements reflect the effect of a range
of possible economic outcomes, calculated on a probability-welighted basis, based on the economic scenarios
described below.

The recognition and measurement of ECL invalves the use of estimation, It is necessary to formulate multiple forward
looking economic forecasts and its impact as an integral part of ECL model.

Methodology

The Company has adopted the use of three scenarios, representative of its view of forecast economic conditions,
required to calculate unbiased expected loss. They represent a most likely outcome i.e. central scenario and two less
likely outer scenarios referred to as the upside and downside scenarios, The Company has assigned a 10% probability
to the two outer scenarios, while the central scenario has been assigned an 80% probability. These weights are
deemed appropriate for the unbiased estimation of impact of macro factors on ECL. The key scenario assumptions
are used keeping in mind external forecasts and Management estimates which ensure that the scenarios are
unbiased.

The Company has used multiple economic factors and tested their correlations with past loss trends witnessed, The
economic factors tested were GDP growth rates, growth of bank credit, wholesale price index [\WPI), consumer price
index [CP1), industrial production index, crude oil prices, exchange rate and policy interest rates. Based on past
correlation trends, CPl and policy interest rates were the two factors with acceptable correlation with past loss trends
which were in line with Management views on the drivers of portfolio trends, These factors were assigned
appropriate weights to measure ECL in forecast economic conditions.

ECL sensitivity to future economic conditions

ECL coverage of financial instruments under forecast economic conditions:

i Particulars 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Gross carrying amaount of loans 2,10,045.78 2,19,624.47
Reported ECL - Other provisions 16,176.53 6,935.96
Reported ECL coverage 7.70% 3.16%

ECL amounts for alternate scenario (without
considering macra-economic overlay)

| Central scenario (B0%) 7,514.36 5.548.77
Downside scenario {10%) 8,453.66 6,242.36
Upside scenario (10%) 10,332.25 7,629,56 P

ECL coverage ratios by scenario (without
considering macro-econamic overlay)

Central scenario (B0%) 3.58% 2.53%
Downside scenario (10%) 4.02% 2.84%
Upside scenario {10%)
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51, Disclosure as per RBI Master Direction DNBR. PD. 008/03.10.119/2016-17, dated September 01, 2016, as amended
from time to time ['RBI Directions’}.

As per the RBI directions the Company was classified as a Systemically Important Non-Deposit taking Company during
the previous financial year based on its assets size. Accordingly, disclosures applicable to Systemically Important Non-
Deposit taking Company as per RBI directions are given,

A. Capital Risk Asset Ratio

snNe. | Particulars | 31March2021 | 31 March 2020
{a) Capital Risk Asset Ratio (%) 38.74% 36.19%
(b) Capital Risk Asset Ratio (%) - Tier | Capital (38) 34.42% 33.81%
{c) Capital Risk Asset Ratio (%) - Tier Il Capital (%) 4.32% 2.38%

Amount of subordinated debt raised as Tier-1l capital
(d) (Raised during the year % Nil, previous year % Nil) 2 ek
B. Details of investments
Particulars: | mamarch2021 | 31March2020 |
| Current Investments:
1. Quoted: MIL NIL
i, Shares:
a. Eguity
h. Preference
. Debentures and Bonds
ii.  Units of mutual funds
v, Government Securities
v. Others (please specify) | Fill Sewr
2. Unguoted: NIL NIL
i. -Shares:
a, Equity
b. Preference
fi. Debentures and Bonds
lil.  Units of mutual funds
iv. Government Securities
v, Others (please specify)
1. Quoted: MIL MNIL
i. Shares:
a. Equity
b Preference
il. Debentures and Bonds
ili. Units of mutual funds
iv. Government Securities
v. Others (please specify)
2 Unguoted: MNIL MIL
i. Shares:
3. Equity
b. Preference |
il. Debentures and Bonds
ifl,  Units of mutual funds
Government Securities
Uthers (please specify)
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C. Disclosure for sccuritisation®

a. The infarmation on securitisation of the Company as an eriginator in respect of outstanding amount of assets
securitised under par structure is given below:

Sr. No. Particulars - 1!:21 2020
1 No, of SPVs sponsored by the NBFC for securitisation 15 11
transactions
2 Total amount of securitised assets as per books of the SPVs 26,939.96 25,016.49
sponsared by the NBFC
3 Total amount of exposures retained by the NBFC to comply with
MRR as on the date of Balance Sheet
a. Off balance sheet exposure
First Loss 110.53 110.53
Others - =
b. On balance sheet exposure
First Loss 3,904.20 3,243.67
Others {Overcollateralization) 5,093.27 3,928.21

Amount of exposures to securitisation transactions other than
MRR

a. Off balance sheet exposure

|. Exposure to own securitisations

First Loss

Others

Il.  Exposure to third party securitisations

First Loss

Others

b, On balance sheet exposure

|.  Exposure to own securitisations

First Loss

Others

Il.  Exposure to third party securitisations

First Loss

Others

(*The above figures are based on the information duly certified by the SPV's auditors).

b. During the year, the Company has transferred loans through securitisation. The information on securitisation
activity of the Company as an originator is given below:

Particulars 31 March 2021 | 31 March 2020
Total number of loans securitised 4,025 6,311
Total book value of the loans securitised 19,664.75 34,064.42
:s;::\{t::?k value of the loans securitised including loans placed as 19,664.75 34,064.42
sale consideration recelved for the loan asset securitised 17,619.03 31,016.86
Overcollateralization of the loans securitised 2,045.72 3,047.55
Excess interest spread recognised in the statement of profit and loss 203.94 584.38
Particulars, | 31March2021 | 31 March 2020
Credit enhancements provided and outstanding (Gross):
Cash Collateral 1,193.93 2,710.27
Corporate Guarantee - 110.53
Loan assets retained as MRR 2,045.72 3,047.55
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D. Disclosure for direct assignment

E.

F.

G.

Details of assigniment transactions undertaken by the Company during the year

Particulars [ 31 March2021 | 31 March 2020
No. of accounts 406 6,211
Aggregate value (net of provisions) of accounts sold 1,775.91 23,322.06
regate consideration 1,775.91 23,322.06
Additional consideration realised in respect of accounts transferred in
earlier years |, ;s
Aggregate gain / loss over net book value | - =
Details of non-performing financial assets sold
Sr. No. Particulars ‘31 March 2021 | 31 March 2020
1 MNo. of accounts sold 2,337 1,456
Fd Aggregate outstanding 4,912.31 2,623.60
3 Aggregate consideration received 147.37 157.42
Maturity pattern of certain items of assets and liabilities
Particulars g o = Yeaeia Mareh 34, 204 NG
i : _ Advances | Investments _Borrowings
0 day to 7 days 3,678.66 . 2,231.21
& day to 14 days 1,666.03 - 991.11
15 days to 1 month 3,779:51 4,315.78
Over 1 month to 2 months 5,265.11 - 5,516.31
Over 2 manths upto 3 months 6,749.26 9,609.46
Over 3 months to 6 months 2238684 | 19,919.16
Dver 6 months to 1 yEar 46,020.41 = - 51,818.10
Over 1 year to 3 years 1,12,690.75 - 58,172.05
Over 3 years to 5 years 1,617.03 - 10,599.15
Over 5 years 5,192.18 - -
Tatal 2,10,045.78 - 1,63,172.33
~ Year ended March 31,2020
Particulars TR N [ | s ""g’ﬂ"iﬁ
0 day to 7 days 3,779.00 - 1,588.22
B day to 14 days 1,483.,51 - 2,385.40
15 days te 1 month 6,471.04 = 4,299.62
Qver 1 month to 2 months 7,233.95 = 12,130.69
Over 2 months upto 3 months 8,500.12 - 7,634.38
Cwver 3 months to 6 months 25,254.42 - 23,943.64
Over 6 months to 1 year 50,237.01 - 31,999.53
Over 1 year to 3 years 1,11,592.85 - 67,045.06
Ower 3 years to 5 years 253.77 = 4.967.51
Owver 5 years 4,818.70 - 1,500.00
Total 2,19.624.47 — - 1,57,497.04
Exposures

(a) Exposure to capital market
The Company has no exposure to the capital markets directly or indirectly in the current and previous year.
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H. Registration with other financial sector regulator
The company has obtained registration as a Corporate Agent (Composite) in February 2019 with Insurance
Regulatory and Department Authority of India (IRDAI). The Registration no. is CA0641 and is valid till February
27, 2022.

I.  Nopenalties imposed on the Company by the Reserve Bank of India or any other regulator during the year
ended March 31, 2021 (March 31, 2020: NIL).

1. Ratings assigned by credit rating agencies and migration of ratings during the year
The overall rating of the Company by India Ratings & research and CRISIL is BBB+/A2 positive, Further, the
Company has obtained rating from ICRA Limited, India Ratings & research and CRISIL in respect of Term
loans, Non-Convertible Debentures and Commercial Paper. The ratings obtained for the said transactions
are provided below,

: Year ended March 31, 2021
Iﬁ'lmmeﬂ R 3 e e g e .'._. = T
“ :;:‘ Rating Agency Current rating assigned | Valid upto
Infomerics
13-Jun-20 IVR A- R A2+(Short Term ratin 09-Jun-21
Line of Credit/ un ratings \'l /Stable/IVR AZ+( g)
Bank lines 30-Jul-20 ICRA [ICRA]BBB+{Stable)/ [ICRAJAZ assigned 29-Jul-21
31-Aug-20 | ICRA [ICRA]BBE+(Stable)/ [ICRA]AZ assigned 30-Aug-21
1390000 | ESmEce IVR A-/Stable 12-Jun-21
| ratings
" | 31-Aug-20 | ICRA [ICRA]BBB+{Stable) 30-Aug-21
on- [T 30Jul-20 | ICRA [ICRA]BBB+(Stable) 29-Jul-21
Convertible |— o TaE — — o
Debentures/ | 02-Mar-21 | i oungs IND PP-MLD BBB+emr/Positive 01-Mar-22
P and Research |
India Ratings IND PP-MLD BEB+emr/Positive, IND A2
Aoepd0 | o Research | (Commercial Paper) Hesepd
23-Now-20 | CRISILLTD CRISIL PP-MLD BBB+r 22-Now-21
__Yearended March 31,2020
Instrument ing . - o N B ek ki | T RO
(UmEnt | FOWE | RatingAgency | Currentratingassigned | Validupto
rlZ-Mar-Zu ICRA [ICRA]BBB+(Stable)/ [ICRA]AZ assigned 12-Mar-21
Line of Credit/ India Ratings )
Bank lines 30-5ep-19 B Rabaaiik: IND BBB+/Positive 29-5ep-20
14-May-19 | CRISIL CRISIL BBEB+/Positive 13-May-20
Mon- 13-Mar-20 | CRISIL CRISIL PP-MLD BBB+/Positive 13-Mar-21
Convertible 12-Mar-20 | ICRA [ICRAJBEB+(5table); outstanding 12-Mar-21
Debentures/ india Ratings | IND PP-MLD BEB+EMR/Positive, IND A2
cP H-5ep-19. | o Research {Commercial Paper) 30-5ep-20

K. Break up of ‘Impairment on financial instruments at amortised cost’ shown under the head Expenditure in

the statement of profit and loss

d up of ‘Impairment allow. " sho 1 ‘ = 1
ma: Expen;;ture in Pra:if;t-and tz::i::::‘:::: i G <2 M.ﬂt‘[:h'-!iil__%ﬂ' l
Loans » 9,174.37 2,148.15
Other financial assets 648.27 24.54
Write offs 7,945 88 8,775.54
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L. Concentration of Deposits, Advances, Exposures and NPAs

i Concentration of Advances

____ Particulars 31 March 2021 | 31 March 2020
Tr::tai Advances to twenty largest borrowers 787.80 891.38
Percentage of Advances to twenty largest borrowers to Total
i A
Advances of the applicable NBFC P it
ii. Concentration of Exposures
Particulars : 31 March 2021 | 31 March 2020
Total Exposure to twenty largest borrowers 800.76 891.38
Percentage of Exposure to twenty largest borrowers to Total
: A41%
Advances of the applicable NBFC 0.35% o)
iiil. Concentration of NPAs
Particulars | 31 March 2021 | 31 March 2020
Total Exposure to top four NPA accounts 111.15 114.69
M. Sector-wise NPAs
o - st I E&rﬂeh;!sw,pfﬂm:etﬂehf ﬁgﬂamfﬂuhﬁ
- 3r,No, Sector Foree o sector A £
: T  SiWarchz0zi | 31March2020
1 Agriculture & allied activities * =
2 MEME® 2.47% 0.44%
3 Corporate borrowers 2.39%
4 Services - 1.76%
5 Unsecured personal loans = .
B Auto loans - H
7 Other personal loans = .
8 Cther retall loans - 2.96%

* Ministry of Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises vide its notification dated June 01, 2020 announced
the criteria for classification of micro, small and medium enterprises basis which the company has
classified its customers into micro, small and medium enterprise in accordance with MSMED Act.

N. Movement of NPAs*

~ Sr.No. Particulars | 31march2021 | 31 March 2020 _
I Net MNPAs to net advances (%) | 0.90% 0.97%
Ii Movement of NPAs (Gross)
i] Opening balance 4,793,37 1,766.67
ii) Additions during the year 9,743.98 14,072.29
iii} Reductions during the year 9,345.17 11,045.69
I} Closing balance 5,192.18 4,793.37
ili Movement of net NPAs
Il Opening balance Z2,103.79 773.53
i} Additions during the year 3,493.15 5,930.91
iii) Reductions during the year 3,731.19 4,600.65
v} Clasing balance 1,865.75 2,103.79
v Movement of provisions for NPAs (excluding |
provision on standard assets)
I}  DOpening balance 2,689.58 993.15
I} Provisions made during the year 6,250.83 8,141.48
i) Write-off/'Write-back 561398 B,445.05
Iv] Closing balance 3,326.43 | 2,689.58

* represents stage-3 loans
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O. Classification and provisions for loan portfolio

Asset classification - | 31March2021 | 31 March2020
Loan outstanding

Standard assets (Stage-1 and Stage-2) 2,04,853.60 2,14,830.82
MNon-performing assets (Stage-3) 5,152.18 4,793.65
Loss assets - -
Less: Provision

Standard assets (Stage-1 and Stage-2) 12,850.10 4,133.40
Nan-performing assets [Stage-3) 3,326.43 2,802.56
Loss assets ] -
Loan outstanding (net)

Standard assets {Stage-1 and Stage-2) 1,92,003.50 2,10,697.42
Non-performing assets {Stage-3) 1,865.75 1,991.09
Loss assels - -

P. Customer Complaints

Sr. No. Particulars 31 March 2021 | 31 March 2020
I No. of complaints pending at the beginning of the year 1 12
Ii No. of complaints received during the year 136 30
lii_ | Mo. of complaints redressed during the year 137 41
w | No. of complaints pending at the end of the year - 1

Q. Asrequired by the RBI circular no DNBS.PD.CC. Neo. 256 /03.10.042 / 2011-12 dated March 02, 2012 the details
of frauds noticed / reported are as balow:

Particulars 31 March 2021 | 31 March 2020
Amount involvad 51.85 -
Amount recovered 3.17 -
Amount written off / provided | 48.68 -
Balance | z =

52, Disclosures as required for liquidity risks

L Funding Concentration based on significant counterparty (both deposits and borrowings)

“Particulars 0 o|r3rmarch 2021
Mumber of significant counter parties* 27
Amount 1,43,016.11
Percentage of funding concentration to total deposits N.A
Percentage of funding concentration to total liabilities 80.60%

* Significant counterparty is as defined in RBI Circular RBI/2019-20/88 DOR.NBFC (PD
CC.MNe.102/03.10,001 /2019-20 dated 4 November 2019 on Liguidity Risk Management
Framework for Non- Banking Financial Companies and Core Investment Companies.

It Top 20 large deposits - Not applicable

1. Top 10 borrowings

[ . Particulars z 3 |31 March 2021
[ Total amount of tep 10 borrowings 94,229.840
| Percentage of amount of top 10 borrowings to total borrowings | 57.75%
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v, Funding Concentration based on significant instrument/product®

Porticlars | 3Marchzozn | PeresniaEeoftotal
Debt Securities £67,550.59 38.07%
Term loans and WCDL 67,093.82 37.81%
Securitisation liabilities 21,127.96 11.91%
CC/oD 4,870.84 2.75%
Sub-debt 2,529.12 1.43%

* Significant instrument/product is as defined in RBI-Circular RBI/2019-20/88 DOR.NBFC
(PD) CC.N0.102/03.10.001/2019-20 dated 4 Movember 2019 on Liguidity Risk
Management Framework for Non-Banking Financial Companies and Core Investment
Companies

V. Stock ratio:

_§r. No. ] Stock ratio Percentage
1 Commercial papers as a % of total liabilities = = MA
2 Commercial papers as a % of total assets = MN.A
2 Mon-convertible debentures (original maturity of less than one NA
| year) as a % of total liabilities g
4 | Mon-convertible debentures (original maturity of less than one N.A
year) as a % of total assets 3
i 5 Other short-term liabilities as a % of total liabilities 56.97%
6 Other short-term liabilities as a % of total assets 40.18%

Institutional set-up for Liquidity Risk Management
Refer Note-50(A) of financial statements
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53. Comparison between provisions required under IRACP and impairment allowances made under ind AS 109:

classification Laring < {Provisians) | Net Carring | "o o0
asperind A | AMountas | asrequired | Amount TR,
= . R SRS 109 TR St oo A IR (Rinosms )
Ay 2) (3) . S 5 T .7 A (< i
Prefarming Assets
| Standard Stage 1 1,50,299.58 4,023.11 1,46,276,47 601.20 3,421.91
Stage 2 54,554.02 | 8,826.99 45,727.03 2,625.21 6,201.78
Subtotal 2,04,853.60 12,850.10 1,92,003.50 | 3,226.41 9,623.69
Non-performing Assets
(NPA)
Substandard Stage 3 4,704.51 2,838.76 1,865.75 | 2,352.25 486.51
|
| Doubtful - up to 1 year
| 11to3years Stage 3 - - - - =
| More than 3 Years Stage 3 487.67 487.67 - | agr.67 -
Subtotal of Doubtful __ Stage3 - . - - -
Loss Stage 3 - - . - -
Subtotal of NPA 5,192.18 3,326.43 1,865.75 | 2,839.92 486.51
Other itams such as Stage 1 . - i g
| guarantees, loan Stage 2 : i E B .
| commitments, etc. which
i are in the scope of Ind AS
| 109 but not covered
under current ingcome
Recognition, Asset Stage 3 = 3 - ;i =
Classification and
Provisioning [IRACP)
NoOrms
Subtotal - - - - -
. Stage 1 1,50,299.58 4,023.11 1,46,276.47 601,20 3,421.91
Total Stage 2 54,554.02 8,826.99 45,727.03 | 2,625.21 6,201.78
Stage 3 5,192.18 3,326.43 1,865.75 | 2,839.92 486.51
Total 2,10,045.78 16,176.53 1,93,869.25 | 6,066.33 10,110.20




54,

Lendingkart Finance Limited
Notes forming part of finaucial statements for the vear ended March 31, 2021

(% in Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

applicable.

For 5. R. BATLIBO! & CO. LLP
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The Company has reclassified/regrouped previous year figures to conform to current year's classification, where
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